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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 11 FEBRUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing .   A re  you ready Mr  

Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson th is  morn ing  we have Mr  

Mark  Pamensky as  the  f i rs t  w i tness .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Mark  Pamensky is  represented 

lega l l y  by  my learned f r iend who w i l l  in t roduce h imse l f .   

Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BLOU SC:  Thank you Cha i r.   My name is  Jonathan  

B lou  I  am f rom the  Johannesburg  Bar  I  appear  w i th  Ms 

Goodman.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV BLOU SC:  For  Mr  Pamensky ins t ruc ted  by  Adam 

Mi tche l l  o f  A t to rneys Thomson Wi l ks .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  be l ieve  Cha i rperson Mr  Pamensky is  
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ready to  take  the  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Mark  Viv ien  Pamensky.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

MR PAMENSKY:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much you may seated Mr  

Mark  Pamensky.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may p roceed Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Thank  you.   Mr  20 

Pamensky has p rov ided the  commiss ion  w i th  an  a f f idav i t  

Cha i rperson wh ich  is  conta ined in  Bund le  Eskom Bund le  17  

–  17  and Exh ib i t  39 .   U39.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Pamensky… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Pamensky w i l l  have the  same.   You 

w i l l  have the  same bund le  in  f ron t  o f  you w i th  your  main  

a f f idav i t .   That  a f f idav i t  i s  on  page –  and we fo l low the  

b lack  pag ina t ion  a t  the  top  le f t  hand co rner  page 368.   You 

are  there?  Keep your  m icrophone on and jus t  re lax  Mr  

Pamensky and you w i l l  be  address ing  the  Cha i rperson.   I  

w i l l  ask  you ques t ions.   So the  a f f idav i t  i s  f rom page 368 –  

a f f idav i t  I ,  the  unders igned Mark  V iv ien  Pamensky you see 

tha t?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  Advocate  and Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I t  runs up  to  page 404.    

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  ja .   I  th ink  you –  there  is  a  

s ignature  on  page –  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 403.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t  tha t  i s  my s ignature  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  i s  your  s ignature?  The a f f idav i t  

i s  da ted  22 n d  December  2020.   You conf i rm th is  to  be  your  

a f f idav i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm the  contents  o f  the  

a f f idav i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  

have the  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U31 – U39.1 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mark  Viv ien  Pamensky  

wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 368 is  admi t ted  togethe r  w i th  i t s  

annexures as  Exh ib i t  U39.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Pamensky has 

f i led  a  sub –  or  submi t ted  a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  

Cha i rperson wh ich  is  ye t  to  be  incorpora ted  in  the  bund le .   

I f  Mr  Pamensky w ishes to  re fer  to  i t  we w i l l  have  to make  

cop ies  and have i t  admi t ted .   I s  i t  in  the  bund le  a l ready?  

What  page?  Page 6  –  oh  they have a l ready incorpora ted  

i t .   That  i s  on  page 685 o f  the  same bund le  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

685.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have i t  Mr  Pamensky as  we l l ?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  runs up  to  page 697.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The s ignature  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page  

696 is  tha t  you r  s ignatu re  Mr  Pamensky?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes i t  i s  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  is  da ted  9  February  2021 20 

you conf i rm th is  to  be  your  a f f idav i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm the  contents?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  
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have the  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U39.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mark  Viv ien  Pamensky  

s ta r t ing  a t  page 685 is  admi t ted  togethe r  w i th  i t s  

annexures as  Exh ib i t  U39.2 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Thank  you.   Mr  

Pamensky thank you fo r  coming aga in  I  unders tand  you are  

no t  coming fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime to  g ive  tes t imony before  the  

commiss ion .  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  good thank you.   Jus t  by  way o f  10 

the  in fo rmat ion  Cha i rperson Mr  Pamensky has dea l t  

ex tens i ve l y  w i th  the  issues o f  suspens ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  I  have had too  many w i tnesses 

appear  be fore  me now tha t  I  cannot  remember.   So –  bu t  

the  las t  –  a t  the  l as t  count  I  was to ld  I  had heard  about  257 

w i tnesses.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  tha t  i s  no t  a  smal l  number.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Pamensky i s  one o f  those.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  thank you fo r  coming back Mr  20 

Pamensky.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Thank you S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes Mr  –  jus t  fo r  in fo rmat ion  

purposes Mr  Pamensky ’s  a f f idav i t  –  the  main  a f f idav i t  

dea ls  more  w i th  the  issues o f  suspens ion  Cha i rpe rson on  
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the  issues o f  t ransact ions Mr  Pamensky had recused 

h imse l f  –  yes in  the  mat te r  tha t  came before  the  board  Mr  

Pamensky had recused h imse l f  –  i s  i t  the  board?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes Cha i r  i t  came to  the  board  I  recused 

myse l f  f rom a l l  coa l  and coa l  p rocurement  a t  Eskom f rom 

tha t  da te  fo rward  I  was never  invo lved in  anyth ing  tha t  

wou ld  come coa l  o r  coa l  p rocu rement  whether  i t  was a t  

board  leve l  o r  sub-commi t tee  leve l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   B .   I  was never  a  board  tender  commi t tee  10 

member  e i ther.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You were  never?  

MR PAMENSKY:   A board  tender  commi t tee  member.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay yes.   So  –  bu t  there  i s  an  issue  

regard ing  Mr  Pamensky ’s  emai l s  tha t  were  exchanged w i th  

one o f  the  Gupta  bro thers .   He w i l l  have to  exp la in  tha t  

par t  inso far  as  the  t ransact ions are  concerned.    

 And then he touches on the  McKinsey mat te r  inso fa r  

as  he  came to  the  board  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  

the  a f f idav i t  I  th ink  we w i l l  re fe r  to  what  i s  in  the  a f f idav i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  w ish  to  jus t  speak up  a  l i t t le  

b i t  Mr  Se leka.  Speak up a  l i t t le  b i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh a  l i t t le  b i t  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   I  w i l l  then 
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p roceed Cha i rperson to  lead Mr  Pamensky ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes do  yes do  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Pamensky the  ev idence a l ready jus t  

by  way o f  background before  the  commiss ion  and  I  th ink  

you have a l ready  g iven th is  in  your  f i rs t  appearance tha t  

you were  one o f  the  new persons appo in ted  w i th  e f fec t  

f rom the  11 t h  o f  December  2014 on the  board  o f  Eskom.   

Cor rec t?   Jus t  by  way o f  background.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson 10 

what  i s  your  p ro fess ion?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cha i r  I  am a  Char te red Accountant  by  

pro fess ion .   Yes tha t  i s  my pro fess ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  was th is  your  f i rs t  

appo in tment  to  serve  on  the  board  o f  Eskom 

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes i t  i s  my f i rs t  t ime to  serve  on  a  s ta te 

owned ente rpr i ses  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  an  SOE tha t  i s  the  –  how were  you  

appo in ted  to  serve  on  the  board?  

MR PAMENSKY:   S i r  as  I  exp la ined las t  t ime I  f i l l ed  in  a  – 20 

f rom the  newspaper  I  f i l l ed  in  the adver t .   What  t ransp i red  

f rom there  is  we  got  rece ip t  acknowledg ing  rece ip t  o f  my 

app l i ca t ion .   Then I  rece ived on the  11 t h  o f  December  a  

le t te r  to  say you have been approved.   I  d id  no t  accept  tha t  

appo in tment  up  f ron t .   There  were  cer ta in  conf l i c ts  I  
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needed to  d isc lose  upf ron t .   Once those were  d i sc losed  

everybody was happy and a f te r  the  DPE Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rp r ise  and a l l  the  o the r  members  approved i t  I  

accepted the  pos i t ion  thereaf te r  in  January  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  you know any o f  the  board  

members  pr io r  to  your  appo in tment?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  ones d id  you know? 

MR PAMENSKY:   I  knew Ms Vi roshn i  Na idoo.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And how d id  you know her?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:   Soc ia l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  vo ice  drops down.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Does i t  oh .  

CHAIRPERSON:   From t ime to  t ime Mr  Se leka.   So make  

an e f fo r t  to  speak  up.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And how do you know her?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Soc ia l l y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  jus t  exp la in  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh yes he r  husband Mr  Kuban Mood ley  is  

a  good f r iend o f  m ine s ince  2001 so  I  have known her  20 

s ince meet ing  Mr  Kuban Mood ley.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  asked her  the  same quest ion  

yesterday i f  you  fo l lowed her  tes t imony and I  asked her  

whethe r  knowing you soc ia l l y  as  a  f r iend does i t  mean you 

were  a  fami ly  f r iend and she sa id  yes.  
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MR PAMENSKY:   I  agree w i th  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You agree w i th  tha t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  pr io r  to  your  appo in tment  to  the  

board  can you rough ly  es t imate  how long d id  you know 

each o ther?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Twe lve / th i r teen years .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   About  th i r teen years?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes about  th i r teen years .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  you –  d id  you know tha t  she was  10 

a lso  app ly ing  to  serve  on  the  Eskom board?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.   By  the  way you sa id  the  husband  

is  a  f r iend o f  yours .  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  do  you know the  type o f  bus iness  

the  husband is  do ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  have been l i s ten ing  over  here  to  the  

commiss ion  jus t  hear ing  what  the  s to ry  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  you d id  no t  know? 20 

MR PAMENSKY:   No not  a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   What  do  you know h im to  be  do ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Kuban is  a  bus iness deve loper  –  Mr  

Kuban Mood ley  sor ry  Cha i r  I  shou ld  look here  is  a  bus iness  

deve loper  manager  –  or  a  bus iness deve lopment  execut ive  
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where  he  puts  dea ls  together  w i th  cer ta in  pa r t ies .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see .   We unders tand tha t  he  is  a lso  

f r iends w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You a lso  knew Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes I  d id  know h im Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   D id  you know tha t  he  a lso  knew Mr  

Sa l im Essa?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  the  th ree  o f  you knew each o ther  as  10 

f r iends?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  bus iness?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No bus iness.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No bus iness?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No bus iness.   I  d id  a  bus iness –  Mr  

Mood ley  le f t  Eskom in  2011 we d id  a  roo f  t i l i ng  bus iness in  

2012 wh ich  d id  no t  work  ou t  and we dec ided tha t  we are  

no t  go ing  to  do  bus iness together  we w i l l  remain  our  

f r iendsh ip  so  we never  d id  any bus iness togethe r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   D id  your  appo in tment  to  the  

Eskom board  –  le t  me put  i t  d i f fe ren t ly.   When you were  

app ly ing  to  serve  on  the  board  d id  you have any 

conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa about  i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No I  d id  no t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   So  he d id  no t  know tha t  you were  go ing  

to  serve  on  the  Eskom board?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And d id  you know any o ther  board  

member  apar t  f rom Ms Vi roshn i  Na idoo?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes I  knew Mr  Khoza September  I  wou ld  

see h im occas iona l l y  a t  the  yearend funct ions a t  Vodacom 

– I  mean a t  Te lkom and then I  knew Mr  Romeo Khumalo  

a lso  jus t  f rom the  year  end funct i ons o f  Vodacom and the  

awards so  we used to  go  fo r  awards a t  yea r  end to  e i ther  10 

Te lkom or  e i ther  Vodacom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And tha t  i s  –  t hose are  the  on ly  th ree  

you knew? 

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Any o f  the  Gupta  bro thers  pr io r  to  your  

appo in tment  to  serve  on  the  Eskom board?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes I  d id  know the  Gupta  bro thers  Mr  

Tony Gupta  as  I  to ld  you las t  t ime I  went  fo r  a  cup o f  tea  

and then I  jo ined the  board  o f  Oakbay Resources and  

Energy L im i ted  the  Johannesburg  S tock  Exchange 20 

Company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Okay you  unders tand the  reasons 

why these quest ions are  be ing  asked?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do.   Because the  board  members  
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have been a l leged to  have had  connect ions w i th  the  

Gupta ’s  and tha t  as  a  resu l t  o f  those connect ions they  

have fac i l i ta ted  t ransact ions tha t  benef i ted  the  Gupta  

en t i t ies  when they were  a t  Eskom.   So tha t  i s  –  tha t  i s  the 

reason we are  ask ing  those quest i ons.  

 P lease tu rn  to  page 372 o f  your  a f f idav i t .    

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  you p roceed Mr  Se leka can I  ask  

th is  quest ion  because I  do  no t  wan t  to  fo rge t  i t?    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   As  I  unders tand  i t  yourse l f ,  Mr  Mood ley  

and Mr  Sa l im Essa are  a l l  f r iends,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes Cha i r  tha t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  the  way you  

desc r ibe  i t  tha t  you th ink  we are  very  c lose  the  way I  am 

f r iend ly  w i th  a  ve ry  lo t  o f  peop le  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  jus t  one o f  

my many f r iends.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  I  am jus t  say ing 

you are  f r iends w i th  bo th  o f  them? 

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ev idence tha t  has been led  here  20 

has suggested tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa  met  w i th  cer ta in  Eskom 

of f i c ia ls  a t  Me l rose Arch  on the  10 t h  o f  March o f  cou rse  one 

o f  the  Eskom of f i c ia ls  was a l leged  to have been present  in  

those meet ings is  Mr  Koko who has den ied  tha t  the re  were  

such meet ings.    
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 D id  you know h is  o f f i ces  a t  Me l rose Arch  –  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Would  you be w i l l i ng  to  po in t  where  

those o f f i ces  exact ly  used to  be  fo r  the  commiss ion?  I s  

tha t  someth ing  you cou ld  do?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes w i th  p leasure .    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wou ld  be  ve ry  gra te fu l  because one o f  

the  th ings we want  to  es tab l i sh  i s  whether  the  peop le  who 

say they had meet ings  w i th  h im and Mr  Koko a t  Me l rose  10 

Arch  can po in t  ou t  tha t  th is  i s  where  we were  a t  those 

meet ings.   And i t  i s  impor tan t  to  f ind  somebody who can 

say we l l  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were  –  th is  i s  where  they  

are  o r  they were  in  March 2015.   Then a t  leas t  we know 

tha t  as  a  fac t  and then we see whether  they a re  po in t ing  

the  r igh t  p laces o r  no t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes S i r  w i th  abso lu te  p leasure .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much.   You w i l l  take  tha t  

fu r ther  Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes indeed Cha i rperson.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Yes Mr  Pamensky I  was 

then –  I  had asked you to  tu rn  to  page 372 o f  you r  a f f idav i t  

parag raph 8 .5  wh ich  is  in  re la t ion  to  your  knowledge and  

in te rac t ion  w i th  the  Gupta  bro the rs .   So i t  says  there :  
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“As  to  the  Gupta ’s  I  met  Tony Gupta  in  

about  June 2014 when he inv i ted  me to  h is  

house to  meet  h im. ”  

I  thought  the  in fo rmat ion  was insu f f i c ien t  –  i t  was  l imp ing  

in  the  sense tha t  we do not  see how i t  came about  tha t  he  

had to  inv i te  you fo r  –  to  h is  house –  inv i te  you to  h is  

house.   

“He –  when he inv i ted  me to  h is  house to  

meet  me. ”  

D id  he  know you before  th is  in  o rder  to  inv i te  you? 10 

MR PAMENSKY:   As  I  sa id  las t  t ime to  you no he  d id  no t  

know me Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes bu t  how d id  he  –  because the  ca l l  

cannot  come out  o f  the  b lue?  So d id  he?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cha i r  the  ca l l s  do  come out  o f  the  b lue .   

I  go t  a  ca l l  ou t  the  b lue  i t  was a  SMS or  a  ca l l  I  cannot  

remember  who sa id  come over  fo r  a  cup o f  tea .   That  i s  

how we do ou r  bus iness.   Peop le  phone you,  you go there  

and you have a  chat  and you see what  the  d iscuss ions are  

about .   That  i s  what  we do in  bus iness.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes no  we jus t  want  you to  exp la in .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh so r ry.  

ADV BLOU SC:   Sor ry  Cha i r  can  I  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  

the  commiss ion  and Mr  Se leka and  fo r  my own –  jus t  b r ing  

my own wi tness i n to  l ine  fo r  two seconds?  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV BLOU SC:   Mr  Pamensky you  heard  the  Cha i r  say  tha t  

he  is  in  1257 R ivers ,  r igh t .   You were  las t  here  when we 

were  he re  las t  i t  was somet ime las t  year  p robab ly  –  the 

year  be fo re  the  examiner  was  d i f fe ren t  i t  was a  Ms 

Hofmeyr.   P lease  t rea t  the  quest ions as  i f  the  pe rsons in  

th is  room had never  heard  the  answers .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Unders tood sor ry  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BLOU SC:   Now no one is  suggest ing  tha t  you have  10 

not  g iven the  answers  bu t  they are  no t  –  they w i l l  no t  know 

them.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No thank  you ve ry  much fo r  tha t  

thank you very  much.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry  Cha i r.   Sor ry  Advocate .  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  I  ind ica ted  I  cou ld  no t  remember  tha t  

he  had been to  –  he  had g iven ev idence.   

MR PAMENSKY:    I  cou ld  no t  have led  a  good impress ion  

Cha i r  i f  you  d id  no t  remember  me.   That  i s  –  tha t  be  the  

t ru th .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so  I  –  I  mean we jus t  want  to  

unders tand how the  ca l l  came about .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry  the  ca l l  jus t  came about  rough ly  in  

June I  go t  a  te lephone ca l l  o r  a  whatsapp message says  
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wou ld  you l i ke  to  come over  and  have a  cup o f  tea  and 

have a  d i scuss ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   I t  was as  s imp le  as  tha t  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes no  you to ld  us .  

MR PAMENSKY:   So  i t  was as  s imp le  as  tha t  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Because I  mean we thought  maybe 

you had been re fer red  to  h im –  he  is  –  your  name has been 

ment ioned to  h im  tha t  you are  in  th is  t ype o f  bus iness and  

tha t  i s  why he ca l led  you to  exp lore  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  what  10 

bus iness they can do w i th  you.   You know tha t  sor t  o f  

in fo rmat ion  one does not  see here .  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  hear  you Advocate  –  I  hear  you  

Advocate  Se leka so  i t  was a  ca l l  and we went  –  we had a  

meet ing .   He exp la ined to  me a  b i t  about  the  Sahara  group 

a  lo t .   He exp la ined to  me more  o f  h is  opera t ions  where  

they go ing  and he exp la ined to  me h is  m in ing  opera t ions 

and then I  exp la ined to  h im B lue  Labe l  Te lecoms what  we 

do and we are  do ing  and we le f t  i t  there .   I t  was  a  very  

coo l  meet ing .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.   So are  you say ing  no th ing  came o f  

tha t  meet ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No S i r  no th ing  came o f  tha t  meet ing .   

There  was jus t  a  genera l  chat .   He exp la ined to  me what  he  

does in  the i r  bus iness,  what  he  is  do ing .   I  sa id  th is  i s  
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what  B lue  Labe l  does and we jus t  had a  genera l  chat  and 

tha t  was i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What  does B lue  Labe l  –  what  d id  o r  

does B lue  Labe l  do?  

MR PAMENSKY:   B lue  Labe l  i s  invo l ved in  the  

te lecommunica t ions indust ry.   I t  i s  invo lved in  a l l  face ts  o f  

s ta r t  and prepa id  a i r t ime whether  i t  i s  ce l lu la r,  whether  i t  i s  

e lec t r i c i t y,  whether  i t  i s  o ther  serv i ces .   I t  p rov ides a  

var ie ty  o f  serv ices  to  –  shoo i t  has  been f i ve  years  –  

excuse me –  i t  o f fe rs  a  va r ie ty  o f  e lec t ron ic  se rv ices  to  10 

enab le  end users  to  ob ta in  p roducts  much eas ier  and much  

more  access ib le  to  anyone.   So we were  pr imar i l y  in  the  

ce l lu la r  d is t r ibu t ion  game.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.   Was –  d id  you get  a  sense tha t  he 

was ca l l ing  you because o f  you be ing  a t  B lue  Labe ls  and 

B lue  Labe ls  was do ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  d id  no t  –  i t  d id  no t  c ross  my mind –  d id  

no t  th ink  about  tha t .   He ca l led  me p robab ly  to  have a  

meet ing  to  see and a lso  open up a  re la t ionsh ip .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So tha t  is  June 2014.   A t  the  t ime 20 

were  you an employee o f  B lue  Labe ls  o r  i s  t h is  your  

company?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No I  was the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Of f i cer  o f  

B lue  Labe l  Te lecoms a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And then you do a lso  say you met  w i th  
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Mr  A tu l  Gupta  bu t  jus t  be fore  I  go  the re  d id  you  ask  Mr  

Tony where  d id  you get  my name and number  f rom? 

MR PAMENSKY:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Why not?  

MR PAMENSKY:   I t  d id  no t  c ross  my mind.   He sent  no  

message got  ho ld  o f  me and wanted to  speak.   You know I  

do  no t  know where  he  got  my number  f rom.   D id  no t  c ross  

my mind.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  th is  t ime 2014 the  Gupta ’s  were  

we l l - known f rom a  med ia  po in t  o f  v iew,  the  l and ing  a t  the  10 

mi l i ta ry  base,  the  wedd ing  a t  Sun C i ty  and the  connect ions  

–  the i r  connect ions w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident .   D id  you  

know about  a l l  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cha i r  asked me las t  t ime tha t  quest ion  

and I  d id  no t  see  i t  l i ke  tha t  a t  a l l  Cha i r.   You know maybe 

i t  was a  po l i t i ca l  f igh t  they were  no t  near  as  tox i c  as  they 

are  today.   You know when I  worked a t  ORE the  l i s ted  

company you know we had KPMG,  we had the  b ig  aud i to rs  

there  was noth ing  wrong.  I t  was run  ve ry  we l l  by  

management .   I t  was ve ry  impress ive  f rom my perspect ive .   20 

Just  to  maybe g ive  you a  l i t t le  concept .   ORE is  l is ted  on  

the  Johannesburg  S tock  Exchange and we meet  quar te r ly.   

So we fo l low very  s im i la r  to  how the  Eskom works .   We 

fo l low your  board  meet ings and you a t tend quar te r ly  and 

you have a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  commi t tees.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes but  okay.   I  unders tand 

MR PAMENSKY:   So  I  jus t  wanted to  say I  have never  seen  

anyth ing  un toward  a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes,  now you w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  

when you become a  board  member.   I t  th ink  you w i l l  dea l  

w i th  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage.   But  I  am jus t  ta lk ing  f rom an  

outs ide  po in t  o f  v iew hear ing  med ia  repor ts  th is  i s  what  i s  

happen ing ,  the  Gupta ’s  and the i r  invo lvement  w i th  the  

fo rmer  Pres ident ,  the  dea ls  tha t  they are  mak ing  w i th  

government  and so  on .   I  am ask ing  whether  you were  10 

aware  o f  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No Cha i r  –  we l l  no .   I  was aware  they 

had re la t ionsh ips  bu t  i t  a lso  seemed to  me tha t  i t  looked  

l i ke  a  lo t  o f  f igh t ing  to  do  w i th  l i ke  the  med ia  peop le  

because they in  my mind owned  TNA and a l l  th is  coming 

across was jus t  l i ke  a  –  a  med ia  f igh t  bu t  I  d id  no t  see  

anyth ing  o f  tha t  Cha i r,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then you do say a lso  tha t  you came to  

know Mr  A tu l  Gupta  and le t  me jus t  read out  f rom your  

a f f idav i t .  20 

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  w i l l  j us t  read  out  f rom your  a f f idav i t .  

Aga in  you say 8 .5 .2  

“A tu l  Gupta  ca l led  me in  la te  August  o r  

ear l y  September  2014 to  inv i te  me to  s i t  on  
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the  board  o f  Oakbay Resources and Energy  

L im i ted  in  an t ic ipa t ion  o f  i t s  l i s t ing  on  the  

Johannesburg  S tock  Exchange. ”  

So okay I  pause there  aga in  because I  am t ry ing  to  th ink  

l i ke  in  the  f i rs t  –  in  the  preced ing  paragraph why does i t  

look  l i ke  a  ca l l  ou t  o f  nowhere  o r  i s  th is  one d i f fe ren t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No Cha i r  as  I  sa id  to  you on tha t  12 t h  he 

exp la ined to  me some o f  h i s  compan ies  and they have got  

m in ing  and every th ing  and then Mr  A tu l  Gupta  phoned me 

a f te rwards to  ask  me to  come and have a  meet ing  w i th  h im 10 

and to  say tha t  he  is  go ing  to  go  and they look ing  to  l i s t  

Oakbay Resources and Energy L im i ted .   And in  o rde r  to  l i s t  

these compan ies  you need to  have  th ree  independent  non-

execut ive  d i rec to rs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So –  ja  you exp la in .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh so r ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  you w i l l  exp la in .  A re  you say ing  the  

ca l l  was a  seque l  to  the  meet ing  you had in  June 2014  

00:25:02 Mr  Tony  Gupta?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  had no re la t ion  a t  a l l  w i th… 

MR PAMENSKY:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  –  bu t  then exp la in  to  us  how –  how 

is  he  ca l l ing  you out  –  i t  seems to  be  out  o f  nowhere?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes he  is  ca l l ing  me out  o f  nowhere .   
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Th is  i s  how you get  inv i ted  to  boards peop le  ca l l  you  up,  

they come,  they know you got  exper t i se  and sk i l l s  and they  

ca l l  you  up.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   So  i t  was l i ke  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes my po in t  i s  how d id  they know you?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh I  do  no t  know Cha i r.   That  I  cannot  

answer  you I  do  no t  know sor ry.   Sor ry  Advocate  I  do  no t  

know how they know about  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

MR PAMENSKY:   I  w i l l  j us t  g ive  you a  s to ry  I  do  no t  want  

to  ment ion  names but  you know when I  jo ined the  board  o f  

ORE the re  were  two members  o f  the  board  and what  they  

ac tua l l y  sa id  to  me was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  board  now? 

MR PAMENSKY:   Board  o f  ORE.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  I  used the  word  Oakbay Resources 

and Energy I  ra ther  use the  word  ORE Cha i r  because I  

have been dea l ing  w i th  th is  fo r  four  years  peop le  keep on 20 

get t ing  confused w i th  the  Oakbay Investments  wh ich  is  the  

Gupta  sh ip  and on th is  s ide .   So I  c rea ted another  a f f idav i t  

to  t ry  exp la in  and  show you my ro le  and the  group.   Sor ry  I  

los t  my t ra in  o f  thought  what  was your  quest ion  S i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink  you are  dea l ing  w i th  the  

quest ion  o f  rece iv ing  th is  ca l l  ou t  o f  the  b lue  bu t  you 

wanted –  I  th ink  you wanted to  share  some… 

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh so  –  so  those board  members  to ld  me 

tha t  they jo ined the  board  because I  was there .   I  d id  not  

rea l i se  what  a  good name I  had in  the  market  a t  tha t  po in t  

o f  t ime –  I  rea l l y  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You d id  no t  what?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Know what  a  good name I  had in  the 

market  a t  tha t  po in t  o f  t ime.   You know to  hear  f rom fe l low 10 

board  members  they cons ide red coming on because I  was  

coming on wh ich  is  qu i te  impress ive .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  jus t  –  yes j us t  d i rec t  the  –  I  mean 

face the  Cha i rperson as  you answer.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh so r ry,  so r ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink  le t  us  –  le t  us  jus t  ge t  the  

f ina l  answer  on  I  th ink  what  Mr  Se leka is  t ry ing  to  

es tab l i sh .   I  th ink  what  he  is  suggest ing  is  –  i s  th is  a  

s i tua t ion  where  you were  ca l led  and inv i ted  to  jo in  the  

board  w i thout  rea l l y  hav ing  had any d i rec t ions o f  wor th  20 

ment ion ing  w i th  the  –  w i th  them you know wi thout  –  w i thout  

rea l l y  hav ing  had  any p r io r  in te rac t ions o f  any substance? 

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   You know as I  sa id  las t  t ime he ca l led  
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me.   We sa t ,  we had a  meet ing .   He asked me a f te r  what  I  

had to  cons ider  i t  –  I  had to  go  and speak to  my employer  

as  we l l  –  I  am employed and I  had to  cons ide r  my opt ions.   

I  then got  a  subsequent  ca l l  f rom the  company secre tary  

and I  du l y  accepted the  appo in tment .   So I  do  no t  –  no  we 

never  had any d iscuss ions be fore .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   So A tu l  Gup ta  a lso  

–  Mr  A tu l  Gupta  a lso  ca l l s  you and the  conversa t ion  leads  

to  you becoming an e l i te  independent  non-execut ive  10 

d i rec tor  in  ORE –  Oakbay Resources.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As  opposed to  Oakbay Investments .   I s  

th is  Oakbay Resources.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As  appose to  Oakbay Investments .   I s  

th is  Oakbay Resources the  very  company tha t  was  

ass is t ing  Tegeta  to  acqu i re  OCH? 

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  Oakbay Resources is  an  energy.   I t  

had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  Opt imum Coa l  t ransact ion .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  we know tha t  Oakbay had made  

an o f fe r  th rough Bowman Gi l f i l l an  to  the  Bus iness Rescue  

Pract i t ioners .   I  am ask ing  you wh ich  Oakbay is  th is?   I s  

tha t  Oakbay Resources or  Oakbay Investments?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  am not  sure .   I t  was de f in i te ly  
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no t  Oakbay Resources.   I  do  no t  know wh ich  en t i t y  in  the  

Gupta  Group made tha t  o f fe r  bu t  I  know i t  was not  Oakbay  

Resources and Energy L im i ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  then you  came to  know the  o ther  

Gupta  bro thers  as  a  resu l t .   I s  tha t  Varun Gupta?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  Mr  Varun Gupta  was the  Execut ive  

D i rec tor  on  the  board  o f  ORE and Sh iva .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you a l so  came to  know Mr  AJ  

Gupta?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.   He was in  the  bu i ld ing  when he 10 

used to  have mee t ings there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now I  am go ing  to  go  a  l i t t le  b i t  ou t  o f  

sequence because o f  th is  i ssue tha t  you are  ta lk ing  about  

now.   The. . .   I f  ORE was not  a  company invo lved in  Tegeta  

fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCH.   When  the  mat te r  came to  the  

board  as  fo rm  o f  a  submiss ion  fo r  p repayment  o f  

R 1 .68  b i l l i on  to  Tegeta  in  December  2015.   Why d id  you  

recuse yourse l f?  

MR PAMENSKY:    I f  I  may Cha i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Ve ry,  very  impor tan t .   Rough ly  

October /November,  ORE and Tegeta  suggested to  the  ORE 

Board  tha t  we purchase the  Brakfon te in  Coa l  Mine in  

exchange fo r  sha res.   So tha t  was on the  20 t h  o f  November.  

 I  gave a  commi tment .   I  had to  exp la in  to  the  board  
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tha t  I  am not  conf l i c ted .   The conf l i c t  was very  remote .   

The Brakfon te in  Cont rac t  had a l ready been awarded by  

Eskom at  tha t  t ime.  

 Our  aud i t  was  done by  the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee  because they dea l  w i th  coa l  p rocurement  bu t  we 

learn t  i t  was management  who s igned tha t  on  the  

10 t h  o f  September.  

 Second ly,  I  do no t  s i t  on  the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee .   I  w i l l  no t  be  invo lved in  any coa l  p rocu rement  

i ssues.   I t  w i l l  be  a  ve ry  l im i ted  occas ion  where  I  wou ld  be  10 

a t  the  expense  o f  the  o ther.   There fore ,  i t  is  was a  

manageab le  conf l i c t .  

 What  I  commi t ted  to  the  ORE Board  tha t  I  w i l l  

recuse myse l f  f rom anyth ing  tha t  i s  re la ted  to  coa l  o r  coa l  

p rocu rement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink . . .   Ja ,  jus t  keep a  d is tance f rom 

the  mic  a  l i t t le  b i t .   Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Sor ry.   So I  wou ld  do  –  I  commi t ted  to  

the  ORE Board  tha t  anyth ing  tha t  came up tha t  about  coa l  

o r  coa l  p rocurement ,  I  wou ld  recuse myse l f .    20 

 And du ly  when  I  f i rs t  came up on the  8 t h  o f  

December,  I  recused myse l f  s t ra igh t  away f rom a l l  coa l  and  

coa l  p rocurement  go ing  fo rward  and anyth ing  to  do  w i th in  

the  Eskom env i ronment .   

 I  never  rece ived  board  packs.   I  never  rece ived  
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any th ing  a t  a l l  tha t  I  cou ld  have in f luenced anyth ing  w i th in  

those env i ronments .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So tha t  mat te r,  i t  i s  a  submiss ion  

prepared  w i th in  Eskom by Eskom and cer ta in  Eskom 

execut ives .    

 They have p repared a  submiss ion  fo r  a  p repayment  

dec is ion  to  be  made by the  board ,  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  by  way o f  

a  Round- rob in  to  be  made a t  12 :00  noon,  9  December  

2015.    

 You rece ived the  communica t ion  v ia  emai l  f rom 10 

Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  on  the  8 t h  o f  December.   You  wou ld  

have rece ived i t  as  we l l .   And you  are  say ing  as  a  resu l t  o f  

rece ip t  o r  tha t  emai l  –  no t  as  a  resu l t ,  a f te r  rece ip t  o f  the 

emai l ,  you recused yourse l f  because o f  the  mat te r  tha t  had 

to  be  dec ided.  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  am not  sure  I  am unders tand ing  your  

quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Bu t  when the  emai l  a r r i ved on the  8 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  yes .  

MR PAMENSKY:    I t  sa id  the  p re-purchase o f  Opt imum 

Coa l  and i t  was  coa l  re la ted .   So immedia te l y  I  sent  an  

emai l  to  the  company secre tary  and to  the  cha i rman 
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because tha t  the  Eskom conf l i c t  ru les .   You need to  in fo rm 

them.    

 And I  asked them:   P lease,  I  am potent ia l l y  

conf l i c ted .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  be  recused f rom a l l  i tems.   So 

my recusa l  was based on the  ORE Board  meet ing  tha t  I  am 

not  ge t t ing  invo l ved tha t  has go t  anyth ing  to  do  w i th  coa l  

o r  coa l  p rocurement  a t  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Have you a t tached your  emai l  to  

your  a f f idav i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  to  my a f f idav i t .   The supp lementa ry  10 

a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  they are  i n  the  supp lementary. . .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Those emai l s?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Can we  go there?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  su re  we  can.   Cha i r,  jus t  be fore  

Advocate  Se leka s ta r ts .   We put  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  

in  jus t  to  exp la in  my ro le  and to  g ive  contex t  to  where  

these mai ls  a re  coming f rom.  20 

 I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  maybe,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  I  can maybe exp la in  the  Oakbay Investments  

or  the  who le  group to  you so  tha t  you get  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  a  

qu ick  s igh t .   I t  w i l l  no t  take  me more  than f i ve  m inutes  and 

I  th ink  i t  w i l l  pu t  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  perspect ive  to  you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.   Le t  us  g ive  you tha t  chance.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I f  I  may ask?   Cou ld  

you go to  page 700 in  the  Eskom Bund le?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have got  tha t .  

MR PAMENSKY:    So  Cha i r,  on  your  r igh t  hand  s ide  is  

Oakbay Investments  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    When you sa id  Eskom Bund le ,  you mean 

the  bund le  we are  cur ren t ly  us ing?  I  th ink  you do because 

I  th ink  the  page you have in  f ron t  o f  you is  the  page I  have.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay.  

MR PAMENSKY:    So  Cha i r,  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide  i s  

Oakbay Investments  and a l l  i t s  g roups.   One o f  them,  we  

put  down the re  is  obv ious ly  Tegeta  and Opt imum.    

 I  have never  been a  d i rec to r  o f  any o f  those  

compan ies ,  no r  have I  had any  ins igh t  in to  any o f  the  

a f fa i rs  o f  those compan ies .   The ro le  I  p layed is  on  the  le f t .    

 So  Oakbay Resources and Energy L im i ted  and i f  20 

one asset  shou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Th is  shows the  pos i t ion  as  

a t  when?  I t  cou ld  no t  be  in  2014? 

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  no .   I  wou ld  propose as  –  ca l l  i t  

2016,  somet ime in  the  year  2016.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Per fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR PAMENSKY:    So  Cha i r,  as  you know,  to  l i s t  on  the  

Johannesburg  S tock  Exchange,  you need  th ree  

independent  non-execut ive  d i rec to rs  as  we l l  as  a  f inanc ia l  

d i rec to r.  

 So we l i s ted  on  the  28 t h  o f  November  2014,  ORE 

l i s ted .   I t s  on ly  assets  tha t  i t  had was Sh iva  Uran ium.   That  

changed Cha i r  on  the  29 t h  o f  February  when the  purchase a  10 

Brakfon te in  asse t  in  exchange fo r  sha res.   So those are  

the  on ly  assets  tha t  a re  there .  

 So tha t  i s  the  Oakbay Group o f  compan ies .   I  sa t  

on  the  le f t .   I  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  any o f  the  compan ies 

on  the  r i gh t .   I  had no ins igh t ,  no  no th ing .   I t  is  in  the  

a f f idav i t .    

 So  I  th ink  tha t  jus t  g ives  you a  b i t  o f  c la r i t y  tha t  I  

wou ld  no t  have seen what  was go ing  in  Tegeta ,  Opt imum of  

Oakbay Investments  and the i r  g roup o f  compan ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Oakbay Investments  was the  20 

major i t y  shareho lders  in  ORE? 

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  i t  was an 80% shareho lder  and 20% 

was owned by  pub l i c  shareho lde rs  a l so  inc luded  in  the 

RDC(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   And Sh iva  was the . . .   Oh,  no  ORE 
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was the  major i t y  shareho lder  in  Sh iva?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And Tegeta  was a  m inor i t y  

shareho lder  in  Sh iva .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    I t  became a  m inor i t y  shareho lde r.   We 

have no dut ies ,  we have no re la t ionsh ips  w i th  

shareho lders ,  the re  are  no  ob l iga t ions to  shareho lders .   So 

they become c lear ly  a  shareho lder.   They have no board  10 

rep resenta t ion  or  no  board  seats  bu t  they become a  19% 

shareho lders  in  Sh iva .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Okay.   Thank you.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka.  

MR PAMENSKY:    So  in  contex t  w i th  tha t  emai l . . .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Can I  s ta r t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  I  want  us  to  go  to  the  emai l .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  I  am go ing  to  go  to  the  emai ls  now.   20 

So I  am jus t  pu t t ing  in  contex t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    

MR PAMENSKY:    Now Cha i r,  rough ly  in  

October /November,  Nazeem Howa is  the  CEO 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  in  2016?  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  th is  wou ld  be  October /November  

2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    He approached  the  ORE Board  and he 

wanted to  make  a  Group Inves tment  Commi t tee  wh ich  

wou ld  mon i to r  investments ,  co rpo ra te  governance and a l l  

those e lements .   I  was ve ry  keen  to  serve  on  tha t  board ,  

tha t  i s  my exper t i se .    10 

 So the  emai ls  I  am go ing  to  b r ing  in to  contex t ,  tha t  

Oakbay Investments  was crea ted and Investment  

Commi t tee  fo r  the  Oakbay Investments  Group  wh ich  

u l t imate ly  d id  no t  happen.   I t  f i zz led  away end o f  January  

and w i th  due respect ,  thank God.   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]    

MR PAMENSKY:    Thank God.   Anyway . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Why do you say tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Because Cha i r  we had no idea what  was 

go ing  on and wha t  i s  coming out  o f  th is  Commiss ion ,  i s  a  – 20 

I  jus t  wou ld  ra the r  no t  jus t  comment ,  you know?   

 Because I  am sure  tha t  i f  there  was an Investment  

Commi t tee  these th ings wou ld  a lso  have been h idden f rom 

us comple te l y  because you do no t  know what  i s  go ing  on  

beh ind  the  scenes,  you know.   
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 So  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  me in  –  wh i l e  we are  s i t t ing  

here  and d iscuss ing  th is ,  I  am put t ing  contex t  in to  my 

emai ls  and I  am not  invo l ved in  the  Gupta  a f fa i rs  o r  the i r  

bus iness and tha t  i s  what  I  am here  to  exp la in  to  you.    

 I  have l i ved  w i th  these emai ls  fo r  years .   I  am 

happy to  exp la in .   Sor ry,  I  am hop ing  I  am not  ta lk ing  too  

much.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  a re  you get t ing  permiss ion  to  s top  

you?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  counse l ’s  laughs g ives  me the 10 

impress ion  what  he  th inks  about  tha t .  [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MR PAMENSKY:    My apo log ies .   So in  connect ion  w i th  

those emai l s .   I t  i s  in  contex t  o f  the  Oakbay Investments  

Commi t tee  tha t  was go ing  to  be  fo rmed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So Mr  Nazeem Howa – you a lso  

knew –  you and h im knew each o ther?  

MR PAMENSKY:    On a  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip ,  he  was 

the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  the  ho ld ing  company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR PAMENSKY:    O f  Oakbay Investments .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Investments .   Oh,  tha t  i s  how you  

came to  know h im.   Ja ,  bu t  le t  us  go  to  the  emai ls  then.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  emai l ,  the  f i rs t  one?   I  see 
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one on page 717.  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  emai l  –  and te l l  us  how we  

shou ld  read them?  Where  do  we s tar t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  you wou ld  s ta r t  on  Eskom 

717 and i t  wou ld  say:   H i ,  Cha i r.   Above tha t  seems to  be  

the  Gupta  leaks tha t  have gone ou t .   I t  seems to  show tha t  

Mr  A tu l  Gupta  then fo rwarded th is  on to  o thers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So wha t  we have then.   I f  I  may 

ident i f y  the  ema i l?   I t  i s  an  emai l  f rom yourse l f ,  Mark  10 

Pamensky.   The emai l  i s  there ,  markpam2@mac.com.   I t  i s  

da ted  November. . .   22  November  2015 a t  07 :40  p .m.    

 I t  i s  an  emai l  to  A tu l  a t  ANN7.com.    

MR PAMENSKY:    And CC’d  Varum Gupta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t .    

MR PAMENSKY:    Because these are  in  re la t ion  to . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Now I  am paus ing  because I  

remember  ANN7 be ing  ment ioned yesterday,  tha t  

Ms Na idoo sa id  she had a t tended – a  what?   I  th ink  i t  was 

breakfas t  o r  wha tever  occas ion ,  funct ion  i t  was w i th  her  20 

husband wh ich  was an ANN7 occas ion  when Mr  Sa l im Essa 

was present .   Have you been inv i t ed  to  such occas ions?  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  have been inv i ted  to  cer ta in  occas ions  

bu t  I  cannot  reca l l  tha t  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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MR PAMENSKY:    I t  was the  SATI  Awards tha t  you get  

inv i ted  to ,  tha t  b ig  funct ion  tha t  they have fo r  the  year -end  

awards.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Were  you inv i ted  to  the  Sun C i ty  

wedd ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Sun C i ty  wedd ing ,  were  you 

inv i ted?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  bu t  tha t  i s  be fore  2014.  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    Oh,  no .   Sor ry  Cha i r.   I  was not  inv i ted .   

B lue  Labe l  Te lecoms was inv i ted  to  a t tend the  wedd ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who was inv i ted?  

MR PAMENSKY:    B lue  Labe l  Te lecoms.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  do  no t  know why the  inv i ta t ion  came.   I  

took  the  inv i ta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You took i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  took  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    And I  went  because I  am a  s ing le ,  

everyone e l se  is  marr i ed .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  took  i t  and went  to  Sun C i ty  fo r  the  two 

days.   I  never  me t  the  Gupta ’s  o r  anyth ing  there  bu t  I  went .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    That  was 2013,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  tha t  i s  be fore  2014.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.   I  have never  met  them.   I  was 

inv i ted  to  the  wedd ing  and I  went  –  o r  I  was not  inv i ted ,  

B lue  Labe l  was  inv i ted  to  the  wedd ing  and I  took the  

inv i ta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you suggest ing  they jus t  sent  an  10 

inv i ta t ion  to  a  company tha t  they had noth ing  to  do  w i th  i t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes!  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  they d id  no t  know anyth ing  about?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes!   I t  came.   I t  was l i ke  okay.   What  I  

know was:   Le t  us  okay.   I  w i l l  go  anyway.   I t  is  a  f ree  

weekend.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MR PAMENSKY:    Ja ,  tha t  i s .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]   Had the  CEO agree to  you 

tak ing  the  inv i ta t ion?  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The CEO? 

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  h im,  bu t  you?  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  they are  a l l  mar r ied ,  as  I  sa id  to  
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you .   So they d id  no t  want  to  go .   So I  was happy to  go  

because i t  was a  f ree  weekend.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.   Yes.   No,  the  wedd ing  was 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  Mr  Pamensky are  you  say ing .   

You went  to  the  wedd ing  and you never  met  the  Gup ta ’s?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  exact ly  what  I  am say ing  Cha i r.   

That  i s  exact ly  what  I  am te l l ing  you.   I  never  met  the  

Gupta ’s  the re .   There  were  hundreds o f  peop le  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you br ing  a  present  fo r  the  coup le  10 

tha t  was get t ing  marr i ed?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  we d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  we d id .   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Wel l ,  i t  jus t  sound s t range tha t  they  

wou ld  send an inv i ta t ion  to  a  company tha t  they had never  

in te rac t ions w i th .    

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  f rom my mindset ,  we saw the  

inv i ta t ion  coming  in .   I t  was a  mass ive  box.   We sa id :   20 

Wel l ,  le t  us  see what  th is  i s .   We opened i t .   Oh,  i t  i s  a  

Gupta  wedd ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MR PAMENSKY:    So  we came.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  to  the  CEO:   I  w i l l  go .   Do not  
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go .  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  no ,  no .   We a l l  –  we,  the  CEO s i t  in  

the  same o f f i ce  a t  B lue  Labe l  togethe r.   So i t  came in .   I  

sa id :   Oh,  i t  i s  a  f ree  weekend.   But  I  w i l l  go .   He sa id  ja .   

As  s imp le  as  tha t  Cha i r.   I t  was no th ing  to  i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  I  th ink  what  the  Cha i r  i s  

say ing .   I t  i s  surpr is ing  tha t  they wou ld  sent  an  inv i te  to  a 

company they do  not  know,  tha t  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  

them.    

MR PAMENSKY:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So we are  t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  what  

i s  the  l ink ,  what  i s  the  connect ion?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  cannot  answer  you on tha t .   I  

was inv i ted  o r  B lue  Labe l  was inv i ted  and I  was happy to  

go .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because some o f  us  were  no t  inv i ted 

and we had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  Gupta ’s .   I  mean,  i t  

cou ld  have a lso  come to  chambers  and say:   Hey,  Mr  

Jonathan B lou  you are  inv i ted .    

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  cannot  answer  you tha t .   I  do  20 

not  know.   I  do  no t  know what  they sa id .   I . . .   B lue  Labe l  

was inv i ted  and I  a t tended i t  and I  d id  no t  meet  them there  

Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.    

ADV BLOU:    Mr  Se leka,  you do not  know tha t  I  was not  
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inv i ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   [ laughs]  

ADV BLOU:    Bu t  I  w i l l  p lace  i t  on  record  tha t  Johnny B lou  

was not  inv i ted .   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  repeat  what  you have 

jus t  sa id .  

ADV BLOU:    He. . .   Th is  i s  s i l l y.   Mr  Se leka sa id  bu t  I  was 

not  inv i ted ,  r igh t?   And out  o f  the  b lue ,  he  ment ioned me,  

say ing  you were  i nv i ted .   That  never  happened.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

ADV BLOU:    I  am conf i rm ing tha t  i t  never  happened.   

Cha i r,  bu t  can  I  jus t  say  th is?   And I  wonder  i f  

Mr  Pamensky shou ld  no t  be  ou t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  wou ld  know bet te r  in  te rms o f  

what  you want  to  say.  

ADV BLOU:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we can excuse h im fo r  a  few minutes  

i f  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV BLOU:    Perhaps I  w i l l  add ress you on someth ing  on  20 

the  end and he can leave.   But  I  jus t  want  to  say Cha i r  tha t  

–  and I  do  no t  want  to  p lace  anyth ing  on  Mr Se leka  

yourse l f  bu t  I  th ink  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  perhaps – and th is  i s  

a  pos i t ion  on  my par t  because I  do  no t  –  bu t  I  do  no t  know 

how many peop le  were  inv i ted  to  tha t  wedd ing .   I  cannot  
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reca l l  the  number.    

 But  th is  i s  a  –  i t  seems to  me to  be  a  company,  a t  

leas t  in  those days,  tha t  wou ld  reach out  to  anybody w i th  

whom i t  m ight  have –  th ink  m ight  have in f luenced anywhere  

whethe r  they have dea l t  w i th  them or  no t  bu t  I  am go ing  to  

pu t  in  my own words.    

 In  o ther  words,  fo r  the  propos i t ion  to  be  co r rec t ,  

one had to  look  a t  a l l  the  inv i tees and see whether  o r  no t  

they had been o r  no t .   That  i s  a l l  I  am say ing ,  on  the  

probab i l i t ies .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV BLOU:    That  i s  a l l  I  am say ing .   I  do  no t  know about  

i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV BLOU:    I  am jus t  say ing ,  i t  m igh t  be  wor th  o f  an  

inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Yes,  le t  us  

cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Pamensky,  le t  us  

go  to  the  emai ls .  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The emai l  then  reads:   Meet ing  o f  even 

date :   “H i  Cha i r. ”   So you a re  address ing  Mr  A tu l  Gupta?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  says :  
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“Thank you fo r  the  conversa t ion  today.   I  w i l l  

ac t ion  a l l  the  i tems and ensure  tha t  they are 

comple ted .  

I  w i l l  send an emai l  to  Te r ry  regard ing  the  lead  

independent  ro le  and tha t  you as  cha i rman has 

dec ided to  take  a  more  conserva t i ve  approach 

and wou ld  l i ke  to  appo in t  h im.  

Th is  i s  the  cor rec t  bus iness dec i s ion  fo r  ORE.  

We wi l l  have the  Sh iva  Uran ium Board  sor ted  

ou t  by  Tuesday.  10 

Th is  w i l l  a l low  us  to  vo te  on  the  Tegeta  

acqu is i t ion  w i th  no  re la ted  par t ies .  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  conc lude th is  approva l  u rgent ly  

so  ORE and Sh iva  Uran ium can imp lement  the  

t ransact ion .  

In  te rms o f  the  Investment  Commi t tee ,  I  am 

ava i lab le  to  s ta r t  s t ra igh t  away as  I  am a t  the 

ta i l  end o f  the  main  acqu is i t ion  o f  Opt imum 

Coa l .  

P lease ensure  tha t  a  cond i t ion  precedent  i s  20 

tha t  the  R 2  b i l l i on  p lan  f rom Eskom is  

w i thdrawn or  i t  becomes the  se l le r ’s  p rob lem.  

I  am happy to  ge t  invo lved to  ass is t  w i th  th is  

acqu is i t ion  and  month l y  mon i to r ing  and 

ana lys ing  o f  a l l  investments  f rom today.  
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I  can  meet  anyone you requ i re .  

I f  you  need me in  Ind ian  or  Duba i  to  d iscuss,  I  

w i l l  meet  you there .  

Trave l  sa fe  and  look fo rward  to  see ing  you 

soon.  

Once aga in ,  thank you fo r  today. ”  

 Now i t  i s  tha t  paragraph,  the  penu l t imate  

parag raph we wou ld  l i ke  to  concen t ra te  on  fo r  now.   In  tha t  

penu l t imate  paragraph,  can you exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson 

what  a re  you ta lk ing  about  there  w i th  Mr  A tu l  Gupta?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka.   I  am not  su re  what  

you are  ask ing .   A re  you ask ing  me fo r  the  parag raph or  

a re  you ask ing  me fo r  the  sentence?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  the  penu l t imate  pa ragraph.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Trave l  sa fe?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one in  te rms o f  investments  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR PAMENSKY:    Oh,  yes  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  Cha i r.   As  I  have sa id  to  you.   20 

Mr  Nazeem Howa approached us  i n  October /November.   As  

I  sa id  to  you. . .   So he approached us ,  tha t  i s  the  

Investment  Commi t tee .  

 As  I  sa id  to  you ,  on  the  20 t h  o f  November,  ORE 

agreed to  purchase the  assets  in  exchange fo r  shares in  
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Tegeta  w i th  the  Brakfon te in  cont rac t .  

 Mr  Gupta  was the  Cha i rman o f  ORE.   He d id  no t  

a t tend the  meet ing .   I  then met  h im two days a f te rwards on  

the  20 t h  to  appra ise  h im o f  those events .    

 The f i rs t  event ,  as  you can see,  i s  Mr  Ter ry  wou ld  

be  Lead Independent .   I  fe l t  tha t  the  Lead Independent  o f  

ORE shou ld  have no re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Eskom because I  

was the  Lead Independent .    

 In  te rms o f  the  Sh iva  t ransact ion ,  the  Sh iva  Board  

had to  approve.   Everybody was a  re la ted  par t y  on  the 10 

Sh iva  Board .   So I  had to  go  on to  the  Sh iva  Board .   So 

those are  the  two  e lements .  

 Now in  te rms o f  the  Investment  Commi t tee .   That  

was the  Investment  Commi t tee  to  come up.   That  i s  why I  

s ta ted  tha t  po in t .  

 Second o f  a l l .   I  am coming to  the  ta i l  end.   Oh,  

sor ry.   We jus t  jumped back.   So met  Mr  Gupta  on  the  22n d .   

And Mr  Gupta . . .   I  f i l l ed  h im in  on  those two po in ts .   And 

he sa id  to  me a t  tha t  meet ing  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  they 

are  look ing  to  buy OCM and the  teams are  in  due d i l igence.  20 

 I  sa id  to  Mr  Gupta :   I s  i t  ORE?  Because I  d id  no t  

see i t  on  the  agenda.   And he sa id  to  me:   No,  i t  i s  no t  

ORE.   And tha t  was the  end o f  ou r  d iscuss ion .  

 Hence,  a f te r  our  meet ing  I  then wro te  the  emai l  on  

what  our  d i scuss ions are .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry  Mr  Pamensky.   Which  Mr  Gupta  

to ld  you tha t  they  are  buy ing  OCH? 

MR PAMENSKY:    OCM,  i t  i s  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Mr  A tu l  Gupta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.   D id  he  te l l  you  tha t  a t  the 

meet ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:    He to ld  me a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  20 t h .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  the  20 t h .  

MR PAMENSKY:    22 n d ,  when I  went  to  f i l l  h im in .   He d id  

no t  come to  the  board  meet ing .   I  needed to  appra ise  h im 

on what  went  on .    

 I t  i s  normal  fo r  a  cha i rman wi thout  cha i r ing  the  

meet ing .    So i t  i s  normal  fo r  a  cha i r  to  go  and f i l l  i n  the  

cha i rman i f  he  d id  no t  a t tend tha t  meet ing .  

 And i t  was a t  tha t  meet ing ,  he  f i rs t  sa id  to  me,  

Mr  A tu l  Gupta ,  tha t  they a re  look ing  to  buy Opt imum Coa l  

and the  teams are  in  due d i l igence .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So when he says:   We a re  

look ing  to  buy OCM.   That  i s  on  the  

22 n d  o f  November  2015.   Was he re fer r ing  to  ORE? 

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  I  asked h im spec i f i ca l l y  when he 

sa id  we.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  sa id :   Mr  Gupta ,  i t  was no t  on  the  

agenda o f  ORE.   And he sa id  to  me i t  i s  no t  ORE who is  

purchas ing  i t .   That  was the  end o f  our  conversa t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   But  I  wonder  whether  i t  makes a  

d i f fe rence,  whether  i t  i s  ORE o r  ORI  o f  the  investment  o r  o f  

the  resources because they are  in te r - re la ted  compan ies .  

MR PAMENSKY:    F i rs t  o f  a l l  they  are  no t  in te r - re la ted  

compan ies .   They  are  s tanda lone compan ies .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    ORE is  l i s ted  on  the  Johannesburg  

S tock Exchange.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  

MR PAMENSKY:    A l l  our  t ransact ions are  a t  a rm ’s  length  

w i th  any company even i t s  re la ted  par ty.   So these a re  

arm’s  length  t ransact ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:    The  d i f fe rence  is  Cha i r  i f  i t  was ORE,  

the  d i f fe rence is  I  s i t  on  the  Board  o f  ORE and the re  w i l l  be  

d i f fe ren t  JSE and  imp l ica t ions on  tha t  by  me s i t t ing  on  the  20 

Board  o f  ORE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  they  are  re la ted  en t i t ies ,  as  

you say,  and you f ind  the  same peop le  o r  some o f  the  same 

peop le  in  the  same ent i t ies .   The Gupta  bro the rs  wou ld  

have been in  the  same ent i t ies .  
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MR PAMENSKY:    I  cannot  comment  on  tha t  bu t  the  

cha i rman was an ORE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    And Mr  Varun Gupta  was an ORE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  am not  sure  the  o the r  veh ic les  tha t  –  

o r  compan ies  tha t  they were  in  bu t  they were  de f in i te ly  

d i rec tors  o f  o ther  compan ies .   I  am not  sure  wh ich  ones.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So you are  no t  g iven a  d i rec t  

answer  as  to  wh ich  o f  the  Gupta  en t i t ies  has dec ided to 10 

purchase OCM? 

MR PAMENSKY:    No.   He jus t  sa id  to  me i t  i s  no t . . .   I  

asked h im spec i f i ca l l y  i s  i t  ORE because i t  was no t  on  the 

agenda and he sa id  no  i t  was not  ORE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  okay.   So le t  us  go  back to  the  

emai l ,  tha t  paragraph.    

“ In  te rms o f  the  Investment  Commi t tee ,  I  am 

ava i lab le  to  s ta r t  s t ra igh t  away. . . ”   

 Which  Investment  Commi t tee  is  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  one I  exp la ined  to  you 20 

when Mr  Nazeem Howa sugges ted tha t  we fo rm th is  

Investment  Commi t tee  fo r  the  ho ld ing  company to  oversee  

invest  and moni to r ing  investments ,  governance.   So th is  

wou ld  be  tha t  commi t tee  because i t  i s  spec i f i ca l l y  an  

acqu is i t ion .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And Mr  Nazeem Howa is  the . . .   

D id  you say he  is  the  CEO of  Oakbay Investments?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  wou ld  have meant  you  

are  dea l ing  w i th  peop le  a t  –  bo th  in  Oakbay Inves tments  

leve l  and Oakbay  Resources leve l?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And then the  pa ragraph 

cont inues:  

“ . . .as  I  am a t  the  ta i l  end o f  the  main  10 

acqu is i t ion  o f  Opt imum Coa l .  

P lease ensure  tha t  a  cond i t ion  precedent  i s  

tha t  the  R 2  b i l l i on  p lan  f rom Eskom is  

w i thdrawn or  i t  becomes  the  se l le r ’s  

p rob lem. . . ”  

 What  a re  you ta lk ing  about  there?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  f i rs t  o f  a l l .   I  am ava i lab le  to  s ta r t  

s t ra igh t  away,  means tha t  I  have not  been invo lved in  th is  

t ransact ion  Cha i r,  number  one.   Because i t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime 

I  have heard  o f  i t ,  I  am coming in  a t  the  ta i l  end.   So I  am 20 

not  invo lved in  th is .    

 In  appear ing  fo r  the  Commiss ion ,  on  the  11 t h  o f  

November  wh ich  is  12 -days be fore ,  I  p icked up f rom 

Glencore ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  Oakbay Investments  had s igned a 

te rms sheet  a l ready w i th  Opt imum Coa l .   I f  I  am cor rec t .  
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 So  jus t . . .   No,  I  th ink  i t  read the  te rms o f  the  

pena l ty.   So I  am jus t  no t  invo l ved .   So my comment  there  

is  a  ve ry  s imp le  comment .  

 In  te rms o f  the  cond i t ion  precedent ,  I  do  no t  

be l ieve  tha t  th is  –  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  the  pu rchaser  

shou ld  acqu i re  the  en t i t y  w i th  tha t  pena l ty.    

 In  o ther  words,  to  no t  de t rac t  f rom the  va lue  is  tha t  

the  purchaser  sha l l  ensure  Cha i r  tha t  i s  a  cond i t ion  

precedent  fo r  th i s  dea l  to  go  th rough tha t  the  f i le  i s  e i the r  

w i thdrawn and the  m iner  tender  w i thdrawn.   I  w i l l  ge t  to  i t  10 

in  a  m inute .   Otherwise  i t  becomes there  prob lem.    

 So in  te rms o f  the  t ransact ion ,  I  wanted the  

pena l ty  to  come to  an  end in  te rms o f  th is  t ransact i on .   So 

I  suggested tha t  the  se l le r  p rocu re  e i the r  the  se t t lement  o f  

the  fa rm o r  i t  takes on  i t  w i th in  i t s  ba lance sheet  pure l y  to  

ensure  tha t  we do not  de t rac t  f rom an under ly ing  en t i ty  o f  

OCM.   So those were  my words.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay le t  us  s ta r t  to  contex tua l i se  th is  

so  tha t  we unders tand exact ly  what  you are  ta lk ing  about .   

I  th ink  –  what  I  w ish  to  say to  you is  th is .   Jus t  g ive  the  20 

Cha i rperson the  fac ts  as  they happen.   And I  w i l l  pu t  th is  

to  you so  tha t  I  see whether  we are  ta lk ing  the  same th ing  

in  th is  regard .  

 Eskom has a  con t rac t  w i th  OCM.   I t  i s  a  coa l  supp ly  

cont rac t .   Th is  cont rac t ,  a t  leas t  w i th  OCM dates  back to  
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2012 but  i t  i s  a  cont rac t  tha t  has  been ongo ing  fo r  qu i te  

some t ime.   G lencore  took ove r  f rom the  prev ious owner.   

 In  the  process  o f  OCM hav ing  th is  cont rac t  w i th  

Eskom and par t i cu la r ly  in  2014/2015,  there  is  an  issue  

about  pena l t ies  tha t  Eskom ra i ses  w i th  OCM in  the  reg ion  

o f  R2.1  b i l l i on ,  R2.17 b i l l i on  and the  pena l t ies  are  sa id  to  

a r ise  f rom OCM not  supp ly ing  coa l  w i th  i s  up  to  spec.   I s  

tha t  the  pena l ty  you are  ta lk ing  about?  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  the  pena l ty  I  am ta lk ing  about ,  

Cha i r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Okay.   Now tha t  pena l ty  was 

sought  to  be  en forced aga ins t  OCM by Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  

Koko ac t ing  on  beha l f  o f  Eskom.   I  add tha t  so  tha t  i t  does  

not  appear  –  i t  does not  ge t  to  be  in te rpre ted  as  be ing  in  

the i r  pe rsona l  capac i ty.   So the  pena l ty  i s  sough t  to  be 

en forced aga ins t  OCM and par t i cu la r ly  a t  a  t ime when 

Oakbay/Tegeta  is  a lso ,  on  the  o ther  hand,  seek ing  to  

acqu i re  OCM.   

 I t  was c lea r  on  the  par t  o f  Eskom tha t  whoever  

acqu i res  OCM wi l l  take  tha t  l iab i l i ty  as  we l l .   So  when your  20 

wr i te  he re :  

“ In  November  2015…”  

You wou ld  have known about  tha t  l iab i l i t y  o r  the  pena l ty,  

you wou ld  have  known tha t  Eskom’s  pos i t ion  is  tha t  

whoever  acqu i res  OCM is  the  one  tak ing  tha t  l iab i l i t y  and 
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…[ in te rvenes]  

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry,  can I  cor rec t  you there?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  p lease.  

MR PAMENSKY:   As  you know,  the  Opt imum Coa l  

t ransact ion  never  came to  the  board .   What  I  d id  know was  

tha t  in  the  press  tha t  I  read in  August  tha t  Eskom was 

fanat ica l  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  tha t  we w i l l  co l lec t  th is  f ine 

because why can we not  co l lec t  f rom Soweto  or  the  

mun ic ipa l i t ies .   So tha t  i s  a l l  I  knew f rom the  press ,  Cha i r.    

 I  had no idea,  was your  second po in t ,  where  you  10 

are  say ing  tha t  they were  en forc ing  i t ,  I  wou ld  no t  know 

tha t .   My mindset  was a t  the  t ime tha t  Eskom was very  

voca l  tha t  i t  w i l l  co l lec t  i t s  money.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  so  you knew f rom the  press ,  f rom 

the  med ia  tha t  Eskom’s  v iew was  tha t  whoever  takes over  

OCM wi l l  be  a lso  tak ing  tha t  l iab i l i ty?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No.   What  I  am say ing  was Eskom was  

very  voca l  in  August  when the  f i rs t  t ime I  p icked up tha t  

there  was th is  pena l ty  and th is  a rb i t ra t ion  came ou t  in  the 

press  and tha t  i s  when I  asked Mr  Mole fe  what  i s  go ing  on .   20 

So I  knew a t  tha t  t ime in  Eskom’s  head we a re  go ing  to  

co l lec t  th is  money because Br ian  sa id  we are  go ing  to  

co l lec t  th is  money.   I  knew noth ing  about  new purchasers  

or  anyth ing ,  a l l  I  knew on tha t  day,  tha t  Eskom was ve ry  

voca l  tha t  i t  w i l l  co l lec t  i t s  money.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   No,  I  unders tand what  you are  

say ing .   Whether  you came to  know th rough Mr  Mole fe  or  

you came to  know th rough what  you say d id  no t  happen,  a  

d iscuss ion  in  the  board ,  i t  i s  ne i ther  here  nor  the re .   I  th ink  

the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  when you wr i te  th is  emai l  in  

November  you had knowledge o f  Eskom’s  pos i t ion  tha t  

whoever  takes –  or  acqu i res  OCM wi l l  a lso  be  l iab le  fo r  

tha t  pena l ty.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So when you are  wr i t ing  then 10 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR BLOU :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   Mr  Se leka has pu t  a  compound 

quest ion  tw ice ,  tha t  he  knew about  the  c la im and  tha t  he  

knew about  who  wou ld  assume l iab i l i t y  fo r  the  c la im as  

be tween buyer  and se l le r  and he  is  –  i t  i s  a  compound 

quest ion  been pu t  tw ice  and Mr  Pamensky has now g iven 

an answer  seems to  me he does not  answer  the  quest ion .   

Can i t  pu t  separa te ly?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Se leka,  I  th ink  the  request  i s  i f  

you cou ld  pu t  the  quest ion  separa te ly  because you may  20 

have put  them bo th  a t  the  same t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no ,  I  –  i f  I  unders tand my learned 

f r iend,  i t  i s  I  was  say ing  whether  he  came to  know i t  f rom 

Mr  Mole fe  or  whether  he  came to  know i t  th rough board  

d iscuss ions,  wh ich  he  says i t  does  not  happen.   I s  tha t  the  
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one?  

MR BLOU :    Sor ry,  the  l ine  o f  quest ion ing  s ta r ted  tha t  he  

knew about  the  fac t  tha t  there  was a  pena l ty  tha t  Eskom 

was c la im ing.   In  the  same quest ion ,  when he s ta r ted ,  he  

sa id  and he knew tha t  i t  wou ld  be  the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  the 

buyer.   In  o ther  words,  wh ichever  –  who the  acqu i r ing  

en t i t y  was,  namely  Oakbay Investments ,  whoever  was  

buy ing  wou ld  assume the  pena l ty.   You put  tha t  to  h im as a  

compound propos i t ion .  They are  no t  the  same quest ion .   

He says he  knew about  the  t ransact ion  f rom the  press .   10 

Whether  he  knew about  the  fac t  tha t  the  purchaser  tha t  

had a l ready been  agreed in  Eskom tha t  the  purchasers  and 

who I  be l ieve  is  a  separa te  quest ion  tha t  he  must  answer  

separa te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe you might  jus t  want  to  pu t  them 

one by  one before  you put  the  f ina l  p ropos i t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may have  been say ing  he  knew 

about  th is  and tha t  because you  know f rom h is  ev idence 

tha t  he  does but  you might  w ish  to  –  you might  w ish  to  20 

conf i rm to  say you knew th is  o r  you d id  no t  know th is ,  you  

not  know tha t  and then maybe then once those have been 

conf i rmed,  one way or  anothe r,  you might  w ish  to  pu t  the 

propos i t ion  tha t  you wanted to  pu t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  thought  i t  was 
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qu i te  c lear  to  the  w i tness so  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe i t  was,  I  may have  missed  

someth ing  bu t… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  maybe what  you can do is  repeat  

what  you sa id  to  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And repeat  what  h is  answer  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then le t  us  take  i t  f rom there .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because I  th ink  on  the  one hand,  Mr  

Pamensky –  we l l ,  my quest ion  rea l l y  was tha t  p r io r  to  

wr i t ing  th i s  emai l  you wou ld  have known Eskom’s  pos i t ion  

tha t  whoever  acqu i res  OCM w i l l  a lso  take  up the  

respons ib i l i t y  in  respect  o f  the  pena l t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  ge t  h im to  conf i rm he knew tha t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  do  no t  agree w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  am jus t  ask ing  a  quest ion .  20 

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh.   No,  I  had no idea what  Eskom’s  

pos i t ion  was in  connect ion  w i th  a  t ransact ion  tha t  is  go ing  

to  purchase tha t  en t i t y,  I  do  no t  know.   What  I  knew 

Eskom’s  pos i t ion  was,  was f rom the  press tha t  they  wanted 

to  co l lec t  the i r  money.   So Eskom was adamant  in  i t s  head 
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tha t  i t  wanted to  co l lec t  i t s  money.   That  i s  what  I  knew.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  wha t  you are  say ing  then is  

you d id  no t  know tha t  Eskom’s  pos i t ion  was whoever  takes 

OCM wi l l  a lso  be  respons ib le  fo r  the  l iab i l i t y.   That  one you 

d id  no t  know.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So d id  you know about  

Pembani ’s  o f fe r  to  acqu i re  OCM? 

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t  know tha t .   So you d id  no t  10 

know tha t  the  co l lapse o f  tha t  o f fer  was on the  very  bas is  

tha t  Pembani  was to ld  i f  you  take  OCM you a lso  take  the  

respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  2 .1  b i l l i on .   You d id  no t  know tha t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  am not  invo lved in  tha t  t ransact ion ,  

do  no t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So i f  you  d id  no t  know tha t ,  he lp  

us  unders tand your  sentence here  where  you wr i t e  to  Mr  

A tu l  Gupta  and you say make –  ja ,  p lease ensure  tha t  a  

cond i t ion  precedent  i s  tha t  the  R2 b i l l i on  f rom Eskom is  

w i thdrawn or  i t  becomes the  se l le r ’s  p rob lem.   Le t  us  20 

unders tand why do you wr i te  a long  those l ines?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Cha i r,  maybe the  word  w i thdrawn is  the  

cor rec t  th ing ,  my a t to rneys te l l  me tha t  the  word  w i thdrawn 

means fo r  no  va lue ,  i t  was never  my in ten t ion  a t  a l l .   My  

in ten t ion  was very  s imp le ,  tha t  the  se l le r  shou ld  e i ther  take  
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on  the  l iab i l i t y  and se t t le  i t  o r  i t  becomes the i r  p rob lem.   In  

o ther  words,  i t  comes on the i r  ba lance sheet  .    

So ,  in  o ther  words,  the  acqu i r ing  shou ld  no t  take  on  

th is  l iab i l i t y  as  i t  wou ld  de t rac t  f rom the  va lue .   As  a  s imp le  

te rm to  te l l  you ,  i f  I  am purchas ing  your  house,  there  is  a  

buyer  and a  se l le r,  the  se l le r  had the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

bank.   I t  does no t  make sense to  purchase the  house w i th  

the  l iab i l i t y,  so  the  se l le r  must  go  and se t t le  o r  p rocure  tha t  

l iab i l i t y  i s  pa id .   So tha t  was the  contex t  o f  my exact  

mean ing  here ,  s i r.  10 

And jus t  to  re i te ra te ,  s i r,  I  jus t  have to  say th is .   I t  

was imposs ib le  tha t  my mind cou ld  have the  m indset  tha t  i t  

cou ld  have been fo r  n i l  va lue .   F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  i t  d id  no t  c ross  

my mind.  

Second ly,  Eskom was ex t remely  voca l .   When Mr  

Br ian  Mole fe ’s  newspaper  a r t i c le  i s  ou t ,  was the re ,  tha t  

they were  a lways  go ing  to  co l lec t .   So i t  never  c rossed my 

mind and I  a lways knew tha t  G lencore  had a  guarantee,  so  

G lencore  –  G lencore  –  Eskom had a  guarantee f rom 

Glencore  and they were  a lways go ing  to  ge t  pa id .   Aga in ,  20 

who was go ing  to  bear  the  r i sk?   I  sa id  tha t  shou ld  be  the  

se l le r,  shou ld  bear  tha t  r i sk ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay …[ in tervenes]  

MR PAMENSKY:   Mr  Se leka,  so r ry,  jus t  Mr  Se leka,  so  in  

o rder  fo r  th is  t ransact ion  to  occur,  I  am say ing  to  the  
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purchaser  do  no t  buy th is  asset  un less  the  se l le r  reso lves 

those two i ssues  and i f  he  does not ,  do  no t  take  on th is  

t ransact ion  because I  do  no t  be l i eve  i t  takes the  under ly ing  

va lue .   But  a lso ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  a  ve ry  h igh  leve l  comment ,  you  

know,  i t  i s  on  he re ,  I  am jus t  g i ven a  comment  here  and 

you can see i t  i s  a l l  dea l t  w i th  be fore ,  so  i t  i s  no t  in tended  

fo r  tha t  mean ing  a t  a l l  and I  am not  invo l ved in  Eskom tha t  

does board  tender  commi t tees,  tha t  does pena l t ies  and a l l  

tha t ,  f ine .   I  sa t  here  las t  t ime and  I  heard  you guys .   I  le f t  

Eskom in  November  2016.   Th i s  pena l ty  was reso lved post  10 

my event ,  jus t  fo r  the  reco rd .   So I  had no invo l vement ,  no t  

no th ing .   Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  tha t  is  a l r igh t .   Okay,  I  have  

d i f f i cu l t y  i f  you  say your  a t to rneys have to ld  you what  

w i thdrawn mean there  because when you were  wr i t ing  the 

emai l  I  do  no t  suppose fo r  one moment  tha t  they wou ld  

have been there  w i th  you he lp ing  you to  d ra f t  th is  emai l .  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Se leka.   My  mind –  

w i thdrawal  does  not  mean fo r  no  va lue  in  my mind.   

Wi thdrawal  means tha t  they take  on tha t  l iab i l i t y.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  am not  f igh t ing  w i th  you.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh,  sor ry.   Sor ry,  sor ry,  so r ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am jus t  po in t ing  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe le t  me ask th i s  quest ion .   I s  the  
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pos i t ion  no t  tha t  when you wro te  th is  le t te r  you r  knowledge  

as  fa r  as  th is  R2 b i l l i on  c la im by Eskom was concerned  

was tha t  Eskom wanted the  OCM to pay th is  amount  and 

there fo re  i t  i s  reasonab le  to  t h ink  tha t  i f  there  are  

negot ia t ions  fo r  sa le ,  th is  i ssue wou ld  ar i se ,  namely  the  R2  

b i l l i on  c la im and  there fore  you were  concerned tha t  the  

purchaser,  as  fa r  as  you are  concerned,  shou ld  under  no  

c i rcumstances en ter  in to  a  dea l  where  th i s  R2 b i l l i on  wou ld  

be  the  purchaser ’s  p rob lem.  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Normal l y  l i ke  a 10 

house bond,  Cha i r.   I f  you  go and buy a  house and you are  

a  purchaser,  you te l l  the  homeowner  you go and se t t le  your  

l iab i l i t y,  I  do  no t  want  to  take  on your  house w i th  tha t  

l iab i l i t y,  i t  does not  make f inanc ia l  sense to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   D id  you ta lk  a long those l ines  

w i th  your  board  members ,  you r  fe l low board  members  a t  

Eskom? 

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  Cha i r,  th is  was a  commerc ia l  

t ransact ion  be tween the  buyer  and  se l le r,  th is  had noth ing  20 

to  do  w i th  Eskom,  my comment  in  tha t  sense.   And no,  I  

never  d i scussed any o f  my conversa t ions,  I  never  shared 

anyth ing  ou t  o f  the  boardroom,  so  I  never  d iscuss any o f  

these comments  w i th  any o f  my Eskom board  members .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no ,  sure .   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  fo l low wi th  –  p lease do no t  fo rge t  

your  quest ion ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How had you acqu i red  the  know ledge o f  

th is  c la im by Eskom? 

MR PAMENSKY:   Cha i r,  I  ga ined my knowledge rough ly  in  

August  2015 when i t  was in  the  press .   You know,  there 

was a l l  the  press  go ing  around tha t  G lencore  and  Eskom 

are  hav ing  th is  f igh t .   So tha t  i s  when I  f i rs t  learn t .   

What  occur red  a f te r  tha t  was,  there  was a  board  10 

meet ing  se t  in  September  where  I  wanted to  ask  Mr  Mole fe  

and we got  an  emai l  to  say  i t  i s  cance l led  and in  my emai l  

back to  them,  say thank you,  bu t  I  have been read ing  in  

the  press  in  the  press  and a l l  o f  tha t ,  have we got  a  

p rob lem wi th  our  coa l ,  i s  every th ing  okay?   

So I  ga ined my  knowledge f rom there .   That  i s  

where  I  ga ined my knowledge,  i t  was not  f rom Eskom,  i t  

was never  d i scussed w i th  us  a t  Eskom as you hear,  so  tha t  

i s  where  I  ga ined  my knowledge f rom,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  answer  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  you  20 

ga ined your  know ledge par t i cu la r l y  f rom the  press  bu t  a lso 

par t l y  f rom your  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  v ia  emai l?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  no ,  no ,  no  one responded  to  my 

emai l ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  
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MR PAMENSKY:   So  I  w i l l  te l l  you  –  i f  you  –  do  you want  

me to  te l l  the  s to ry  what  happened? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  necessar i l y.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Okay.   I t  i s  in  the  pack.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you acqu i red  the  

knowledge the  p ress  fu l l  s top?  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No but  you d id  say a l so  you spoke to 

Mr  Mole fe .   10 

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes,  I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And he a lso  to ld  you –  what  d id  

he  say to  you?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  Mr  Mole fe  in fo rmed me tha t  th is  dea l  

was not  in  the  best  in te res ts  o f  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   And i t  was unaf fo rdab le .   And f rom tha t  

perspect ive  they cou ld  no t  agree on pr i ce  or  quant i t y.   That  

i s  a l l  he  to ld  me.  

 The second th ing  he  to ld  me,  I  sa id  are  we a l l  okay 20 

fo r  coa l?   He sa id  we are  a l l  okay  fo r  coa l .   I  sa id  to  h im I  

see there  is  pena l ty,  he  says yes I  ra ised the  pena l ty  

because i t  wou ld  prescr ibe .   And tha t  was ou r  

conversa t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  in  your  answer  I  hope  the  



11 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 342 
 

Page 61 of 94 
 

quest ion  s t i l l  has  the  fo rce  i t  requ i res .   You were  say ing  

the  t ransact ion  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  Eskom,  you d id  no t  

d iscuss th is  mat te r  w i th  your  fe l low board  members  bu t  the 

pena l ty  had every th ing  to  do  w i th  Eskom.   I t  was an Eskom 

mat te r  and i t  i s  in  tha t  contex t  tha t  I  am ask ing  you 

whethe r  th is  i ssue o f  the  pena l ty,  wh ich  you were  ra is ing  

here ,  d id  you d i scuss i t  w i th  your  fe l low board  members  o r  

even the  execut ive ,  I  m igh t  add ,  in  Eskom,  l i ke  Br ian  

Mole fe ,  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  to  say we l l  look ,  th is  i s  my v iew 

on th is  mat te r.  10 

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l… 

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  why wou ld  I  have –  

sor ry,  Cha i r,  a lso ,  why wou ld  I  have d i scussed my v iew 

wi th  the  management  o f  Eskom.   Th is  was a  –  jus t  sor ry,  

th is  was a  t ransact ion  be tween a  buyer  and se l le r  and I  am 

not  te l l ing  Eskom to w i thdraw i t s  c la im,  I  am te l l ing  tha t  the  

buyer  must  pay Eskom and reso lve  i t ,  end o f  s to ry.   I  am 

miss ing  your  quest ion  maybe,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  am on ly  ask ing  you to  exp la in  to  20 

the  Cha i rpe rson whethe r  the  same conversa t ion  you have 

here  …[ in tervenes]  

MR PAMENSKY:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    …you wou ld  have had w i th in  Eskom.  

MR PAMENSKY:   No.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  because –  I  mean a t  tha t  s tage 

Eskom is  adamant  tha t  OCM must  pay th is  pena l ty,  th is  

2 .17  b i l l i on  pena l ty  and you say you had le f t  –  what  

happens u l t imate ly  w i th  th is  pena l ty,  i s  tha t  i t  ge ts  to  be  

reca lcu la ted  on the  bas i s  tha t  there  were  er rors  in  the  

ca l cu la t ion .   Par t l y  e r ro rs  in  the  ca l cu la t ion  bu t  a l so  tha t  

there  i s  a  per iod  wh ich  had a l ready been pa id ,  so  we a re  

no t  go ing  to  charge fo r  tha t  per iod .    

 And i t  ge ts  r idd led  down to  what  becomes a  payab le  

amount ,  some R255 mi l l ion .   Even o f  tha t  R255  mi l l ion ,  10 

Tegeta  does not  pay the  fu l l  amount ,  i t  pays on ly  R171 

mi l l ion  and then i t  goes in to  bus iness rescue.  

 But  when you read the  a f f idav i t  f rom CDH,  the  

a t to rneys fo r  Eskom at  the  t ime,  they had a l ready g iven 

Eskom adv ice  tha t  you w i l l  face  cha l lenges in  your  c la im.   

D id  you know about  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  comple te l y  unaware ,  Cha i r,  no th ing  

to  do  w i th  Opt imum Coa l  o r  any coa l  a f te r  I  recused  myse l f  

came fo rward  to  me.   So I  was  not  invo l ved,  I  recused 

myse l f  and eve ry th ing ,  I  le f t  in  December  2016.   I  20 

unders tand tha t  in  December  f rom Ms Dan ie l s ’ a f f idav i t  i s  

when she s tar ted  engag ing  in  a rb i t ra t ion  and a l l  o f  tha t .   I  

was not  invo l ved ,  I  had le f t  Eskom.   And aga in ,  i t  never  

came to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  jus t  f ina l l y  on  your  use o f  the  
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words:  

“P lease ensure  a  cond i t ion  precedent  tha t  the  c la im  

is  w i thdrawn. ”  

Jus t  f rom your  exp lanat ion ,  what  d id  you mean by  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   C lea r ly  tha t  a  cond i t ion  precedent  must  

be  in  te rms o f  tha t  f ine ,  i t  i s  se t t led .   So,  in  o the r  words,  

tha t  G lencore ,  wh ich  is  the  se l le r  en t i t y,  must  se t t le  the i r  

c la im.   I f  i t  does not  se t t le  the i r  c la im i t  must  take  i t  on  i t s  

ba lance sheet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  the  se t t le  i s  the  subsequent  10 

sentence.   There  is  f i rs t  w i thd rawn,  so  I  wan t  your  

exp lanat ion  o f  w i thdrawn.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes,  R2 b i l l i on  pena l ty  must  be  se t t led .   

I f  i t  i s  no t  se t t led ,  then they mus t  take  i t  on  the i r  ba lance  

sheet  .   So i f  G lencore  does not  se t t le  Eskom the i r  money  

or  goes to  a rb i t ra t ion   -  sa id  the  contex t ,  sor ry,  

w i thdrawal… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Wi thdrawal  i s  sa id  to  me in  the  contex t  o f  

an  arb i t ra t ion ,  Cha i r.   I  am not  a  lawyer,  Cha i r,  bu t  in  te rms  20 

o f  an  arb i t ra t ion ,  in  my mind i t  is  se t t led ,  d ismissed or  

c losed out  o r  reso lved.   So,  as  I  sa id  was,  in  te rms  o f  th is  

a rb i t ra t ion  we a l l  knew as the  se l le r  who is  a  par ty  to  the  

arb i t ra t ion ,  he  is  the  person,  he  must  go  and se t t le  the  

mat te r  o f  a rb i t ra t ion .   What  does  se t t le  mean?  I  do  no t  
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know,  ge t  to  a  dea l ,  ta lk  about  i t ,  they  are  invo l ved,  I  do  

no t  know what  i t  invo lves bu t  i t  is  jus t  a  very  h igh  leve l  

contac t  tha t  they must  go  and  se t t le  th is  mat te r  in  

a rb i t ra t ion  or  shou ld  I  say  reso lve  th is  mat te r  and then 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  I  unders tand your  exp lanat ion  

there  inso fa r  as  i t  re la tes  to :  

“…or  i t  becomes the  se l le r ’s  p rob lem. ”  10 

So le t  me say to  you so  tha t  you can come and then on my 

propos i t ion  to  you.   So th is  o ther  one says i t  becomes the  

se l le r ’s  p rob lem.   So the  se l le r  w i l l  have the  prob lem,  

whatever  they do ,  e i ther  se t t lemen t  o r  pay i t ,  because tha t  

i s  what  i t  means  there ,  bu t  when  you say w i thdrawn,  on l y  

Eskom can w i thd raw tha t  c la im,  the  se l le r  cannot  because  

i t  i s  the  l iab i l i t y  o f  the  –  the  se l le r  i s  the  debtor.   

 And th is  i s  what  I  want  to  say to  you so  you can 

comment .   What  you mean there  is  tha t  Eskom shou ld  

w i thdraw the i r  c la im so  tha t  even the  buyer  i s  no t  l iab le  fo r  20 

tha t  l iab i l i t y.   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  comment?  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  de f in i te ly  no t  my mindset  was 

th ink ing  a t  a l l .   F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I  am not  invo l ved in  these 

th ings,  I  cannot  in f luence.   My comment  was very  s imp le ,  

tha t  the  se l le r  must  se t t le  th is  l iab i l i t y.   I  never  eve r  
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suggested tha t  Eskom shou ld  w i thdraw the  se t t lement ,  i t  

never  c rossed my mind,  Eskom is  no t  a  par ty  to  th is  

negot ia t ion  and I  do  no t  have the  au thor i t y  to  speak on  

Eskom’s  beha l f  and I  do  no t  ge t  invo lved in  tha t ,  Cha i r,  i t  

s i t s  in  board  tender,  so  i t  i s  no t  my p lace to  say tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  I  jus t  want  to  ind ica te  we are  

a t  seven minutes  past  e leven.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  pac ing  yourse l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  the  res t  o f  your  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  thank you,  Cha i r,  I  

am a lso  keep ing  my eye on the  c lock .   Ja ,  bu t  you are  

say ing  you are  no t  invo lved in  th is  bu t  your  sentence 

car r ies  on ,  the  pa rag raph car r i es  on  to  say:  

“ I  am happy to  ge t  invo lved  to  ass is t  w i th  th is  

acqu is i t ion  and month l y  mon i to r i ng ,  ana lys ing  o f  a l l  

investments  f rom today.   I  can  meet  anyone you 

requ i re .   I f  you  need me in  Ind ia ,  Duba i  to  d i scuss,  I  

w i l l  meet  you there . ”  20 

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes,  Cha i r,  I  am happy to  ge t  invo lved in  

te rms o f  the  investment  commi t tee  to  ge t  invo l ved  in  th is  

t ransact ion ,  to  unders tand i t  and  every th ing ,  maybe the re  

is  more  in fo rmat ion  they want  to  g ive  me.   Th i s  i s  a  – th is  

must  be  a  huge acqu is i t ion  fo r  any  company tha t  i s  coming 
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in ,  so  I  was happy to  ge t  invo l ved and ass i s t  in  tha t  sense,  

my corpora te  f inance sk i l l s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Take us  th rough …[ in tervenes]  

MR BLOU :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   No,  jus t  in  fa i rness,  jus t  to  

speed th ings a long.   In  fa i rness to  the  w i tness and I  just  

po in t  ou t ,  Mr  Se leka,  the  prev ious s ta tement  tha t  he  was  

not  invo lved and cou ld  no t  become invo lved re la ted  to  h is  

pos i t ion  a t  Eskom,  so  i t  i s  no t  fa i r  to  say tha t  there  is  

cont rad i c t ion  in  t he  next  sentence.   He can jus t  ask  the  

w i tness to  exp la in .   But  anyway,  the  w i tness has done i t .   10 

Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  he  does the  w i tness has 

exp la ined,  Cha i r.  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes.   Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  i f  you  are  ask ing  

me tha t  I  cou ld  ass i s t  in te rna l l y  w i th in  Eskom and get  th is  

w i thdrawn,  reso lved,  whatever,  no ,  i t  does not  invo l ve  me,  

I  does not  s i t  in  my commi t tees,  i t  s i t s  in  board  tender.   

Remember,  th is  i s  a  huge pub l i c  ou tcry  tha t  has happened  

in  August ,  you know,  i t  i s  a  b ig  th ing .  20 

 And second o f  a l l  –  we l l ,  I  though t ,  bu t  there  is  a l l  

red  tape w i th in  Eskom,  there  is  a l l  in te rna l  cont ro l s ,  there  

is  p rocedures,  as  a l l  you r  w i tnesses have to ld  you,  you  

have got  to  go  up  and you have got  to  p repare  the  

documents .   So i t  was never  in  my mind tha t  –  o r  cou ld  I  
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ever  ass is t  –  I  cou ld  never  ass is t  any o f  the  Guptas  to  ge t  

tha t  f ine  w i thd rawn,  was never  my word ing .   I f  tha t  i s  what  

you are  ask ing ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  we l l ,  I  pu t  a  s ta tement  to  you jus t  

to  comment  on .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  tha t  was never  my in ten t ion ,  I  was  

invo l ved in  the  investment  commi t tee  to  be  fo rmed,  I  wou ld  

ass is t  w i th  tha t  perspect ive .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  us  go  to  the  next  emai l ,  the  

o ther  emai l .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes.   So,  Cha i r,  th is  o ther  emai l  comes.   

I t  was pub l i c l y  announced,  th is  t ransact ion .   So aga in ,  I  am 

not  invo lved in  th is  t ransact ion ,  I  never  have been.   What  I  

ga ined was f rom the  press .   Mr  Gupta  never  rep l ied  to  any  

emai ls  except  th is  one.    

 There  is  no th ing  un toward  about  me congra tu la t ing  

h im,  I  s t rong ly  be l ieved tha t  th is  g roup was growing a  huge 

resource  company.   You had us  who had the  go ld  and 20 

uran ium we jus t  purchased in  Brak fon te in ,  they are  

purchas ing  Opt imum Coa l ,  then I  th ink  th i s  g roup is  go ing  

to  be  a  huge resource  g roup.   I  do  no t  know what  i s  go ing  

on  in  there ,  so  I  am send ing  a  congra tu la t ion  emai l  to  h im 

based on what  I  saw in  the  p ress .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and le t  us  see tha t  congra tu la t ion .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Le t  us  go  there .  

MR BLOU :    No,  Mr  Pamensky,  p lease,  jus t  then jus t  wa i t  

fo r  the  quest ion .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh,  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So the  emai l  reads –  i s  tha t  on  

page 718?  Eskom bund le  17 .   I  be l ieve  Mr  Pamensky i t  i s  

the  bo t tom one,  hey?  

MR PAMENSKY:   That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    On 10 December  2015 a t  22 .32 ,  i t  i s  

f rom yourse l f .   I t  i s  an  emai l  to  who?  I t  i s  no  apparent  

here .  

MR PAMENSKY:   I t  wou ld  the  Cha i rman,  Mr  A tu l  Gupta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Say:  

H i  Cha i r,  congra tu la t ions . ”  

The Cha i rman o f…? 

MR PAMENSKY:   I  am say ing  Cha i r,  H i ,  i t  i s  the  Cha i r  o f  

ORE.  He is  ORE’s  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see .   Okay,  so  you are  20 

communica t ing  w i th  h im in  h is  capac i ty  as  the  Cha i rpe rson 

o f  ORE.  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  am emai l ing  h im –  Cha i r,  i s  how 

you wou ld  respect  h im.   I  am emai l ing  h im in  genera l  to  

congra tu la te  on  an acqu is i t ion ,  I  am not  congra tu la t ing  h im  
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as  the  Cha i r  o f  ORE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   No,  no ,  I  unders tand tha t .   But  

d id  you unders tand my quest ion?  Are  you communica t ing  

w i th  h im in  h is  capac i ty  as  Cha i rpe rson o f  ORE? 

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  Cha i r,  I  am …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Genera l l y.  

MR PAMENSKY:   I  am g iv ing  h im a  genera l  here  to  w ish  

h im congra tu la t ions .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  thanks.   You say:  

 “H i  Cha i r,  congra tu la t ions ,  Mazel  tov . ”  10 

That  i s  congra tu la t ions ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes,  i t  i s  Jewish  word  fo r  mazel  tov ,  yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Yes,  sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  I  d id  no t  pu t  up  my  

hands l i ke  you thought ,  sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  you  d id  no t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   There  was no board  meet ing ,  I  am 

send ing  the  emai l ,  I  know noth ing  is  wrong,  I  do  no t  yes ,  

yes ,  I  rea l l y  th ink  i t  i s  a  -  bu t  le t  us  go ,  sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   20 

“ I t  i s  on  a  br i l l ian t  and we l l - thought  ou t ,  p lanned 

and s t ra teg i se  tha t  pos i t ion  o f  the  Opt imum Group 

o f  Companies .   Wel l  done,  I  am proud o f  you a l l . ”  

That  where  i t  sounds l i ke  you are  pu t t ing  your  f i s t  in  the  a i r  

there .        
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“Th is  i s  on ly  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  resources group 

growth  and many more  to  come in to  p lay. ”  

So th is  i s  very  dea l  w i th  a re  ta l k ing  about ,  Tegeta  acqu i r ing  

OCM and –  we l l ,  u l t imate ly  i t  became OCH tha t  they 

acqu i red .   And you a re  congra tu la t ing  h im fo r  tha t ,  th is  i s  

on  the  10  December  2015.   That  i s  the  same date  tha t  they  

s igned the  ag reement  wh ich  had suspens ive  cond i t ions .   

So you knew about  tha t .  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  what  I  knew was f rom the  press .   I  

knew noth ing ,  every th ing  I  ga ined was f rom the  p ress .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  what  d id  you know f rom the  press?  

MR PAMENSKY:   The press  sa id  tha t  they have one a  

t ransact ion ,  I  th ink  i t  was the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  

pu t  ou t  a  p ress  re lease,  so  tha t  i s  what  I  knew f rom i t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you d id  no t  know f rom Mr  A tu l  

h imse l f?  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  no  one in fo rmed me,  no  one rep l ied  

to  my emai ls ,  I  was not  invo lved,  I  have never  been 

invo lved in  th is  t ransact ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

MR PAMENSKY:   Fo r tunate ly  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Yes,  I  –  so  you –  the  BTC 659  

prepayment  you were  no t  invo l ved  as  we l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR PAMENSKY:   No,  I  was not  invo lved.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t  se rve  on  BTC.  
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MR PAMENSKY:   No,  as  I  sa id  to  you before ,  I  a lso  

recused myse l f  w i th  coa l  o r  coa l  p rocurement - re la ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  no ,  bu t  I  am say ing  you d id  no t  

serve  on  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR PAMENSKY:   Oh,  I  never  served on BTC.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:   And I  was unaware  o f  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   That  i s  f ine ,  so  tha t  i s  –  Cha i r,  I  

am t ry ing  to  f ina l i se  th is .   So you know f rom the  fac t  –  

we l l ,  I  do  no t  know whether  you know,  bu t  the  ev idence  10 

tha t  has cropped  up f rom the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  f rom the 

par l iamentary  po r t fo l io  commi t tee  and here  be fo re  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  dec is ions tha t  were  be ing  made by  Eskom 

and in  par t i cu la r  in  regard  to  the  submiss ions tha t  were  

made to  the  board ,  one to  the  board  and the  o the r  to  the  

BTC for  these prepayments  tha t  were  meant  to  go  to  

Tegeta  seem to  have been made in  o rder  to  ass is t  Tegeta  

in  acqu i r ing  OCH,  OCM.   I  accept  tha t  you d id  no t  take  par t  

in  the  dec i s ion -mak ing  in  December  2015,  exp la in  to  you 

tha t  the  ev idence as  i t  emerges  appears  to  po in t  to  an 20 

ass is t  –  an  e f fo r t  on  the  par t  o f  Eskom to  ass is t  Tegeta  in  

the  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCH,  f inanc ia l l y.    Do you th ink  you have  

any comment  on  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  cannot  specu la te  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  

un for tunate l y  your  ro le ,  I  cannot  specu la te ,  I  have been 
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watch ing  bu t  I  cannot  specu la te  Cha i r,  I  can  on ly  say I  am 

not  invo lved in  those t ransact ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Thank you Mr  Pamensky.    You 

have dea l t  a lso  w i th  th is  i ssue  in  your  a f f idav i t  o f  the  

coopera t ion  agreement ,  I  mean you d id  ment ion  i t  as  you 

were  ta lk ing  abou t  th is  t ransact ion .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  sor ry  Cha i r,  I  have never  

known about  the  coopera t ion  agreement ,  i t  has  never  been 

ment ioned to  us ,  a l l  tha t  we are  aware  is  the  4 t h  

Addendum.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The 4 t h  Addendum.    

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  ja  sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No tha t ’s  f ine  fo r  tha t  cor rec t ion ,  

because the  o ther  board  members  have ment ioned a  

coopera t ion  agreement ,  o r  the  negot ia t ion  process tha t  

was ongo ing  a t  the  t ime when Mr  Mole fe  comes to  Eskom.   

To  cu t  a  long s to ry  shor t  tha t  mat te r  comes to  the  Board  on  

the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2016,  no  2015.  

MR PAMENSKY:    2015,  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And we heard  ev idence tha t  the  Board 20 

was met  in  Cape Town and tha t  th is  was a  more  o f  an 

in fo rmal  meet ing ,  can you reca l l  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:  Can I  s top  you there ,  no t  an  in fo rmal  

meet ing ,  I  heard  i t  yes te rday,  I  re - looked a t  the  m inutes  

aga in ,  you can see there ’s  th ree  top ics  there ,  you have the  



11 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 342 
 

Page 73 of 94 
 

Corpora te  P lan  so  you have to  have the  management  and  

a l l  tha t  there  o therwise  i t  wou ld  be  imposs ib le ,  you had  

a lso ,  the  war  room,  the  peop le  who were  engaged in  the 

war  room were  Management ,  no t  the  Board ,  we weren ’ t  

invo l ved and I  even went  a  s tep  fu r the r  Cha i r,  i f  you  don ’ t  

m ind.   Cha i r  th is  w i l l  come as a  reve la t ion  to  me too ,  

whethe r  i t ’s  in  the  Bund le  or  no t  we ’ l l  a l l  f ind  ou t  r igh t  now.   

So,  yes terday I  heard  i t  was an…[ in tervenes] .    

CHAIRPERSON:    [Laughter ] ,  somet imes you get  

someth ing  l i ke  th is ,  and you get  ve ry  usefu l  in fo rmat ion .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and we ’ re  here  seek ing  the  t ru th ,  

so  I ’ ve  go t  no  d i f f i cu l t y,  Mr  Pamensky,  i s  th is  in  the  

Bund le?  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  i t ’s  no t ,  bu t  I ’ l l  j us t  te l l  you  now tha t  

I  d id  i t  th is  morn ing ,  so ,  to  le t  you know s t ra igh t  away is ,  

yes  I  heard  yeste rday i t  was an in fo rmal  –  i t ’s  imposs ib le ,  I  

re - looked a t  the  m inutes  there ’s  reso lu t ions,  there ’s  

every th ing  and then I  looked a t  the  emai l  f rom the  company  

Secre tary,  Wayne Venter  to  de te rmine the  Board  meet ing  

and you can see everyone i s  on  i t ,  a l l  Execut i ves  and 20 

every th ing  to  tha t  ex ten t .   So,  they wou ld  have had to  be  

there  to  p resent  who was go ing  to  p resent  to  us ,  so  I  went  

to  look  a t  tha t ,  so  i t  was def in i te l y  no t  an  in fo rmal  Board  

meet ing ,  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You say you looked a t  the  m inutes ,  you  
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saw tha t  none o f  the  Execut ives  names are  

on…[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  they are ,  i f  you  go look  in  the 

Execut ives ,  when  you go look in  i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh is  there  and…[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  no ,  no  th is  i s  2015,  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  

2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Mr  S ingh ’s  no t  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no  cor rec t ,  you ’ re  r igh t .  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    Bu t  i f  you  look in  the  m inutes  the  GE for  

Genera t ion  is  ta l k ing  to  us ,  so  they must  have been there ,  

no-one ’s  go ing  to  ta lk  to  us  about  –  and make dec i s ions 

w i thout  management ,  tha t ’s  the  on ly  peop le  who are  go ing  

to  g ive  us  the  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  we ’ re  ta lk ing  now in  respect  

o f  the  issue o f  the  addendum,  the  addendum tha t  ge ts  to  

be  re fe r red  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Oh yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  tha t  mat te r  ge ts  to  be  re fer red  to  20 

Mr  Mole fe?  

MR PAMENSKY:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have exp la ined in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

you don ’ t  know who asked fo r  i t  to  be  re fer red  to  Mr  

Mole fe .  
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MR PAMENSKY:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  because  he was fa i r l y  new there .   

Why do you th ink  i t  was re fer red  to  h im and not  to  the  team 

tha t  was negot ia t ing  the  mat te r?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Wel l ,  f i rs t  o f  a l l  Cha i r,  you a lways,  f rom 

the  Board  go  th rough the  CEO,  you don ’ t  speak,  as  my  

unders tand ing ,  when you go to  t here ,  you speak  to  the 

CEO,  the  CEO goes and reso lves i t ,  so  the  CEO wi l l  go  and 

speak to  the  PD Depar tment  o r  whoever  he  needs to ,  to  

ga ther  tha t  in format ion .   You don ’ t  go ,  as  I  –  my 10 

exper ience is ,  you don ’ t  go  and ins t ruc t  the  o ther  

Managers  you go to  the  CE and the  CE dea ls  w i th  

i t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You speak to  the  leader.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  you speak to  the  leader,  cor rec t  

and he hand les  i t  Cha i r.   I t  was a l so ,  jus t  to  le t  you know,  

Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  was ve ry  fo rmal  a t  the  beg inn ing  when we 

f i rs t  jo ined and sa id ,  a l l  commun ica t ion  must  go  th rough  

h im and the  CEO because tha t ’s  the  pro toco l  w i t h in  th is  

o rgan isa t ion .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  your  –  f rom your  po in t  o f  v iew  

i t  was not  an  issue –  i t  was not  an  issue re la t ing  to  the  

negot ia t ing  team or  the  Execut ive  no t  be ing  ab le  to  answer  

quest ions tha t  the  Board  had,  i t  was not  about  tha t ,  do  you 

unders tand my quest ion?  
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MR PAMENSKY:    Can you jus t  rephrase your  ques t ion  to  

me,  a re  you say ing  to  me,  sor ry,  tha t  we re fer red  i t  to  Mr  

Mole fe  regard less…[ in te rvenes]?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no ,  no  I ’m  say ing ,  f rom your  po in t  

o f  v iew the  re fer ra l  o f  the  mat te r  to  Mr  Mole fe  was not  

because the  nego t ia t ing  team or  the  Execut ives  invo lved in  

the  negot ia t ions  were  unab le  to  answer  quest ions wh ich  

the  Board  had,  f rom your  po in t  o f  v iew was,  we l l  here  we 

have a  leader  le t ’s  re fe r  i t  to  h im.  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  no  Cha i r,  the  t ru th  o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  I  10 

can ’ t  rea l l y  remember  tha t  –  I  can ’ t  go  and te l l  you  tha t  

perspect ive .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  f ine  and I  see f rom your  

a f f idav i t  tha t  you  c lear l y  say,  the  Board  d id  no t ,  what  i s  

i t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:   Accept  o r  re jec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  r igh t ,  d id  no t  accept  o r  re jec t ,  

approve,  o r  d isapprove,  i t  s imp ly  re fers  the  mat te r  to  

Mole fe ,  and i t  re fe rs  t o  h im,  w i th  t he  unders tand ing  tha t  he  

w i l l  come back,  i s  tha t  your  unders tand ing?  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  my unders tand ing ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You heard  the  o ther  Board  members  

say tha t  he  d idn ’ t  come back,  they  p icked up th is ,  e i ther  in  

some repor t  in  September  and by  tha t  t ime he had a l ready 

te rm inated the  negot ia t ions .   What ’s  your  reco l lec t ion ,  d id  
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he  come back?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r  my reco l lec t ion  was th is ,  I  th ink  I  

exp la ined to  you  ear l ie r.   My reco l lec t ion  f rom my s ide  

was,  we had a  Board  meet ing  se t ,  I  then got  an  emai l  to  

say  the  Board  meet ing  has been postponed and  i t  was  

there  tha t  I  was not ic ing  on  the  press ,  w i th  G lencore  the  

month  be fo re ,  I  wanted to  f ind  ou t  what ’s  happen ing ,  

what ’s  go ing  on .   Anyway,  I  wro te  an  emai l ,  can someone 

p lease te l l  us  what ’s  go ing  on  you know,  what ’s  the  

De legat ion  o f  Author i t y  say,  you know,  a t  leas t  te l l  us ,  and 10 

le t  us  know what  i s  go ing  on .   There  was no response to  

tha t  and then –  and  I  th ink  the  da te  wou ld  have been,  fo r  

me,  when Mr  Mole fe  f i l l ed  me in  when he sa id  i t  was not  in  

the  best  in te res t  and unaf fo rdab le  and i t  does accord  w i th  

my in i t ia l  impress ions,  wou ld  have been the  10 t h  o r  11 t h  o f  

September  because we are  onboard  Breakaway and  I  don ’ t   

in te rac t  w i th  the  CE you don ’ t  phone h im and you don ’ t  

have tha t  re la t ionsh ip ,  you know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i s  the  Cha i rperson ab le  to  hear,  

a re  you ab le  to  hear  Mr  Pamensky,  Cha i rpe rson?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  hear ing  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay thank you Cha i r.   R igh t ,  Mr  

Pamensky d id  you,  p r io r  to  you hear ing  f rom the  med ia ,  

when was tha t ,  when you heard  and then you sent  an  

emai l?  
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MR PAMENSKY:    A t  the  beg inn ing  o f  August  was a  lo t  o f  

th is  go ing  on  and  then our  Board  meet ing  was se t ,  I  th ink ,  

fo r  the  14 t h  o r  18 t h  o f  September  and on the  27 t h  we got  a  

no t i f i ca t ion  to  say the  Board  meet ing  is  go ing  to  be  

postponed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  when do you make your  

enqu i ry  about  what  you ’ve  –  you hear  in  the  med ia?  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  do  my enqu i ry  in  tha t  emai l ,  I  wanted  

to  speak to  the  Board…[ in te rvenes ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  September?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    In  September.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  I  see because my quest ion ,  l i ke  I  

d id  a l l  the  Board  members  i s ,  when you re fer red  the  mat te r  

to  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015,  wh ich  is  a  mat te r  o f  

s ign i f i can t  impor tance i t  wou ld  appear,  d id  you fo l low up  

w i th  h im because he ’s  g iven an ass ignment ,  go  ge t  

in fo rmat ion  and come back,  repor t  back to  the  Board ,  g ive  

us  feedback because we haven ’ t  –  we have  ne i ther  

re jec ted  no r  approved th is  th ing ,  does the  Board  make a  

fo l low-up w i th  h im? 20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  can ’ t  ta lk  the  Board ,  bu t  I  made 

the  fo l low-up,  you know,  the  next  t ime our  quar te r l y  Board 

meet ings come wou ld  be  –  the  quar te r l y  meet ing  was one  

in  May and then there  was one in  September.   So,  the  f i rs t  

t ime he came back,  I  saw in  the  p ress  is  when I  asked but  
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a lso  to  your  quest ion ,  Mr  Se leka,  you know,  i f  there ’s  a  

prob lem wi th  coa l  o r  the  supp ly,  management  w i l l  come to  

us  in  tha t  sense  but  to  answer  your  quest ion ,  yes ,  I  d id  

ask .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  we cou ldn ’ t  f ind  anyth ing  to  

show tha t  any Board  member  made enqu i r ies  be fore  Mr  

Mole fe  te rm inated th is  coopera t ion…[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Oh yes,  none o f  us  knew the  

t ransact ion ,  none  o f  us  –  we weren ’ t  invo lved,  we  d idn ’ t  

know.   I  found out  f rom the  press  what  t ransp i red ,  we 10 

d idn ’ t  know tha t  he  had te rm inated whatever  h is  

negot ia t ions  were ,  we were  unaware .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  because my quest ion  was in  

re la t ion  to  tha t ,  whethe r  there  was any fo l low-up w i th  h im 

f rom the  pa r t  o f  the  Board ,  p r io r  to  h im te rminat ing?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Oh,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Cha i r  I  –  I  th ink  I ’ ve  

exhausted th is  par t ,  the  -   the  suspens ion  issues are  l i t t le  

b i t  longer,  bu t  I  wou ld  have l i ke  to  have summar i sed them 

wi th  Mr  Pamensky except  tha t  we know tha t  t ime is  no t  20 

necessar i l y  on  ou r  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  –  you  can s t i l l  have about  15  

m inutes  be fo re  we might  need to  make a…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  thank you Cha i r.   Yes,  Mr  

Pamensky,  qu ick ly  on  the  suspens ions,  jus t  a  few po in t s  
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there ,  Mr  Pamensky and you dea l  w i th  i t  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

maybe I  shou ld  tu rn  to  tha t  a f f idav i t  so  tha t  i f  you  need to  

make re fe rence to  anyth ing  in  your  a f f idav i t  you can use i t .   

You w i l l  p rov ide  us  w i th  tha t  document ,  you read f rom,  in  

due course ,  the  one you pu l led  ou t  f rom your  bag.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  I ’ l l  j us t  hand i t  to  –  I ’ l l  g ive  you a  

copy as  we l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  qu ick ly  on  the  suspens ions,  I  

th ink  you dea l  w i th  them – you dea l  w i th  tha t  on  page 375  

o f  you r  a f f idav i t  onwards.   Th is  i s  the  ev idence before  the  10 

Commiss ion ,  on  the  9 t h  o f  March  2015 –  we l l  there ’s  a  

cance l la t ion  o f  a  meet ing  on  the  26 t h  o f  February,  a  

schedu led  Board  meet ing  and you compla ined about  i t .   On 

the  9 t h  o f  March ,  a  meet ing  is  convened,  9  March 2015 by  

Mr  Tsots i  by  emai l  on  the  even ing  before ,  the  8 t h  o f  March.   

He had been,  on  tha t  day,  the  8 t h  o f  March  wh ich  is  a  

Sunday,  he  had been a t  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  in  

Durban and he comes to  the  meet ing  on  the  9 t h ,  I  th ink  you 

jo ined the  meet ing  by  te lephone,  you were  no t  there  in  

person and a  d iscuss ion  ensued about  what  Mr  Tso ts i  says  20 

was h i s  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres iden t  and what  the  Pres ident  

requ i res  o f  the  Board .   

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  tha t  meet ing ,  we have –  we l l  about  

tha t  meet ing  we have had some –  we l l  I  th ink  the  Board  
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members  are  unab le  to  reco l lec t ,  whatever  the  pos i t ion  i s ,  

bu t  some have  g iven var ious  vers ions abou t  what  

t ransp i red  in  tha t  meet ing .   I ’ ve  seen in  your  a f f idav i t s  and  

I  want  to  ask  you  a  few quest ions,  so  tha t  you can te l l  the  

Cha i rperson.   Other  than the  inqu i ry  –  the  reques t  fo r  an 

inqu i ry,  d id  the  Board  members  d iscuss the  issue o f  

suspens ions,  on  the  9 t h  o f  March 2015?  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  we d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d idn ’ t ,  thank you,  Mr  Pamensky.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink ,  a lmos t  a l l  the  w i tnesses,  Mr  10 

Se leka,  have sa id  tha t  tha t  on  the  9 t h  there  was no  

d iscuss ion  on  the  suspens ions,  some o f  the  Execut ives  

were  in  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I ’ ve  had to  pu t  tha t  to  them Cha i r,  

when we get  i t  f rom the  Execut ives ,  the  Execut ives  sa id  

they were  there ,  they d idn ’ t  d iscuss the  –  how can they 

d iscuss the  suspens ions o f  themse lves…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  po in t  I ’m  mak ing  is ,  don ’ t  you  

want  to  go  to  po in ts  where  there  seems to  be  d isputes  on  

the  issue o f  suspens ions because w i th  regard  to  whethe r  20 

the  suspens ions were  d iscussed a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  9 t h ,  

my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  nobody says  they were  d i scussed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no  Cha i r,  tha t ’s  –  we have  

overcome tha t  hu rd le ,  you are  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Because they were  say ing ,  some o f  

them,  the  suspens ions were  d iscussed…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then comes the  meet ing  o f  the  15 t h  

–  o f  the  11 t h  sor ry,  Mr  Pamensky,  11  March 2015 where  the  

Min is te r  i s  p resent  and the  Min is te r,  aga in ,  as  I ’ ve  seen 

f rom your  a f f idav i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  pu t  th is  quest ion  to  h im wh i le  you 

are  look ing  a t  your  quest ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  looked a t  your  a f f idav i t  Mr  

Pamensky,  one o f  the  th ings tha t  you don ’ t  say  in  your  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  some o f  the  Board  members  have  sa id  i s  

tha t  in  tha t  meet ing  be tween the  Min is te r  and the  Board ,  

on  tha t  day,  tha t  morn ing ,  the  Min is te r  d id  spec i fy  the  

por t fo l ios  whose heads wou ld  need to  be  suspended.   Now,  

I ’m  say ing ,  need  to  be  suspended but  a  number  o f  the  

Board  members  sa id  the  Min is te r  sa id ,  I ’m  not  ins t ruc t ing ,  I  

can ’ t  ins t ruc t  the  Board  as  to  who to  suspend  but  fo r  

example ,  I  th ink  Mr  Khoza made i t  c lear  tha t  i t  was qu i te  20 

imp l ied  tha t ,  tha t ’s  what  she wanted.   So,  do  you reca l l  

tha t ,  o r  do  you no t  reca l l  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  my reco l lec t ion  is ,  she 

ment ioned the  four  a reas,  and she ment ioned the  fou r  

a reas tha t  were  a f fec ted  w i th in  the  four  depar tments .   I  
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don ’ t  remember  her  spec i f i ca l l y  say ing  –  bu t  I  remember  

someth ing  ve ry  c lear l y  in  my head,  I  w i l l  no t  p ro tec t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR PAMENSKY:    So ,  in  my mind was,  i t  was a  moot  po in t  

because we had  to  dec ide  on  the  suspens ions bu t  in  my  

mind exact ly  wha t  I  sa id  to  you,  was we had a  suppor t  bu t  I  

can te l l  you  now,  the  seed o r  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  the  

pr inc ip le  o f  the  four  Execut ives  to ,  you know,  we shou ldn ’ t  

have a  prob lem wi th  us  pu t t ing  them to  s tep  as ide  i f  you  

want  to  pu t  i t ,  was in  tha t  meet ing ,  tha t ’s  where  i t  came 10 

a l i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  and one o f  the  th ings tha t  has 

been sa id  or  tha t  has emerged is  tha t  apar t  f rom Mr  Tsots i  

who had been to  the  Durban meet ing  on  the  8 t h  where  th is  

i ssue o f  the  suspens ion  o f  the  Execut ives  came up as  we l l  

the  issue o f  an  inqu i ry,  apar t  f rom h im i t  doesn ’ t  appear  

tha t ,  o f f i c ia l l y,  any Board  member  knew about  the  idea o f  

the  suspens ion  o f  Execut ives  un t i l  the  Min is te r  ra ised i t .  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  cor rec t?  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly  t here  may o r  no t  have been  

some Board  members  who might  have known,  unof f i c ia l l y  

bu t  in  te rms o f  what  I ’ ve  heard ,  tha t ’s  when th is  who le  idea  

i t  wasn ’ t  o f  a  suspens ion  or  s tepp ing  as ide  was ment ioned 
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fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime to  the  Board .  

MR PAMENSKY:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And when,  la te r  on ,  a f te r  the  Min is te r  

had le f t ,  Mr  Tsots i  spoke,  he  a lso  spoke,  obv ious l y  about  

the  suspens ion  but  eve rybody knew what  the  Min is te r  had  

sa id ,  you know,  and o f  course  he was te l l ing  the  Board  

a lso  about  what  he  had heard  a t  the  Durban meet ing ,  he  

m ight  no t  have sa id  there  was a  Durban meet ing  bu t  he ,  

c lea r ly,  was ta l k ing  about  in te rac t ions i nvo lv ing  the  

Pres idency and so  on ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  Cha i r,  the  on ly  t ime he ment ioned 

the  Pres idency was on the  mee t ing  o f  the  9 t h ,  he  sa id  

c lea r ly  tha t ,  A ,  he  dra f ted  th is  submiss ion  he ’d  seen the  

Pres ident  th ree  t imes as  recent ly  as  yeste rday and the  

Pres ident  has ins t ruc ted  h im and us  to  do  an  inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  on  –  are  you say ing  on  the  11 t h  he  

d idn ’ t  re fe r  to  h is  in te rac t ions w i th  the  Pres idency in  

re la t ion  to  the  inqu i ry  and the  suspens ions?  

MR PAMENSKY:    No,  on  the  11 t h  i t  s ta r ted  o f f  the  

meet ing ,  i t  was c lear  he  was push ing  fo r  four  he  exp la ined 20 

misdemeanours  o f  th ree ,  I  don ’ t  reca l l  the  m isdemeanours  

o f  th ree .   We,  as  a  Board  pushed back,  what  was to ld  in  

tha t  meet ing  was ,  Mr  Tsots i  to ld  us  tha t  he ’d  been –  tha t  

the  Pres idency had been work ing  on  th i s  fo r  mon ths ,  he  

was g iven a  th ick  repor t  l i ke  th is ,  i t ’s  in  a  th ick  repor t  l i ke 
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th is  tha t  covered  a l l  the  bases  and a l l  o f  tha t  and he had  

obta ined a  lega l  op in ion  tha t  the  Execut ives  cou ld ,  lawfu l l y  

be  suspended,  he  d idn ’ t  ment ion  anyth ing  about  the  ta lk  in  

Durban or  anyth ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  about  the  ev idence tha t  I ’ ve  heard ,  

I  th ink  f rom Mr  Tsots i  and f rom o ther  Board  members ,  I  

th ink  Dr  Ngubane  is  one o f  them,  tha t  the  d iscuss ion  by  the  

Board  o f  the  suspens ions o f  the  Execut ives  was  on the  

bas is  tha t  i t  was –  the  suspens ions were  no t  l inked  to  any 

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct ,  tha t  the  idea was s imp ly  to  say,  10 

we a re  no t  mak ing  any a l legat ions  aga ins t  the  Execut ives ,  

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  bu t  we are  s imp ly  say ing ,  in  

o rder  fo r  the  inqu i ry  o r  the  i nvest iga t ion  to  p roceed  

smooth ly,  we wou ld  l i ke  them to  be  suspended  o r  to  s tep 

as ide ,  do  you remember  tha t  d i scuss ion?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  was  a t  the  

meet ing  I  was a t ,  remember  I  le f t  a t  1h30 and we on ly  

agreed th ree  res ignat ions,  no t  four.   Sor ry  cou ld  you  

repeat  your  quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  do  you remember…. [ in te rvenes] .  20 

MR PAMENSKY:    Sor ry,  you ’ re  r igh t ,  the  idea was to  le t  

them s tep  as ide  w i thout  any charges or  l ook ing  fo r  

wrongdo ing  tha t  was i t ,  i t  was to  s tep  as ide  so  tha t  they  

don ’ t  impede o r  s low th is  invest iga t ion  down.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  now,  aga ins t  tha t  background,  
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to  the  ex ten t  tha t ,  as  I  reca l l ,  bu t  Mr  Se leka might  cor rec t  

me,  as  I  reca l l ,  Mr  Tsots i  seems to  have den ied  hav ing  to ld  

the  Board  about  m isdemeanours  o f  Execut ives  to  suppor t  

suspens ion ,  Mr  Se leka is  tha t  co r rec t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  he  has den ied  g i v ing  them a  

l i s t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Can I  answer  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  be fore  you say anyth ing .   You are  

no t  the  on ly  one,  you are  no t  the  on ly  Board  member  who 

says he  to ld  the  Board  about  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  by  10 

some o f  the  Execut ives  or  a l l  o f  them,  I ’m  not  sure ,  bu t  I ’m  

wonder ing  why  he wou ld  ta lk  about  tha t  i f  the  

unders tand ing  was tha t  the  suspens ions were  no t  go ing  to  

be  based on a l l egat ions o f  m isconduct ,  do  you want  to  

comment  on  tha t?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  th ink  I ’m  fu l l y  

unders tand ing  tha t  quest ion ,  what  I ’m  th ink ing  

is…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me say,  I ’m say ing  you and some o f  

the  Board  members  maybe a l l  o f  them,  those tha t  have 20 

tes t i f ied  have sa id  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  d id  te l l  the  Board  

members  about  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  on  the  par t  o f  

some,  a t  leas t ,  I  don ’ t  know i f  a l l…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Three.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  some o f  the  Execut ives  tha t  were  



11 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 342 
 

Page 87 of 94 
 

sought  to  be  suspended.  So,  my quest ion  is ,  I  wonder  why 

he wou ld  be  te l l ing  the  Board  members  about  a l lega t ions o f  

m isconduct  in  c i rcumstances where  i t  was unders tood,  

w i th in  the  Board ,  tha t  the  suspens ions were  no t  go ing  to  

be  based on a l legat ions o f  m isconduct .  

MR PAMENSKY:    May I  answer  tha t  Cha i r?   He f i rs t  

s ta r ted  o f f  push ing  fo r  suspens ion  w i th  charges.  Mr  Ba loy i ,  

as  I  reca l l ,  was qu i te  aga ins t  i t  so  he  came in  w i th  the  

concept  to  push  fo r  charges,  you know,  and the  Board  

members  fe l t  tha t  there  was not  su f f i c ien t  in fo rmat ion  to  do  10 

charges,  we ’d  ra ther  s tep  as ide  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.   I  jus t  

answer  you one las t  quest ion  Cha i r,  sor ry  I  don ’ t  want  to  

take  your  t ime.   On the  meet ing  o f  the  19 t h ,  i f  we d idn ’ t  

have th is  record ing ,  I  th ink  we wou ld  a l l  be  in  t roub le  here .  

In  tha t  record ing ,  as  c lear  as  day l igh t ,  what  I  pu t  down 

there ,  tha t  he  admi t ted  to  a l l  these i tems in  b lack  and 

wh i te  i t ’s  in  the  record ing ,  so  he  can ’ t  deny i t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  m ight  be  room for  20 

one…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    One or  two –  yes,  ta lk ing  about  tha t ,  

Mr  Pamensky,  h is ,  what  i s  i t ,  admiss ions or  concess ions  

are  no t  in  re la t ion  to  the  charges tha t  he  a l leged,  

m isdemeanours ,  I ’ ve  seen wha t  you se t  ou t  in  you r  
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a f f idav i t .   One is  tha t  Tsots i  –  Mr  Tsots i  to ld  us  tha t  the  

Pres ident  had the  repor t ,  tha t  invest iga t ion  and in  there  

was a  repor t  about  m isdemeanours  bu t  he  d idn ’ t  p roduce 

tha t  repor t ,  do  you reca l l  tha t ,  tha t ’s  page 389? 

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    389 o f  you r  –  o f  the  Bund le  where 

you ’ re  dea l ing  w i th  the  remova l  o f  Mr  Tsots i  and he  

admi t ted  to  hav ing  er red  by  no t  p roper l y  in t roduc ing  Mr  

L inne l l  to  the  Board ,  tha t ’s  one o f  the  reasons.   He  d id  say 

tha t  you ’ re  r igh t ,  bu t  we know tha t  f rom the  ev idence o f  – 10 

and in  par t i cu la r,  Ms K le in  say we d id  embrace we d idn ’ t  

re jec t  and Mr  –  no  not  Mr  bu t  Dr  Ngubane sa id ,  look  Mr  

L inne l l  we are  cont rac t ing  w i th  you and a f te r  tha t ,  a f te r  the  

meet ing  o f  the  11 t h ,  wh ichever  l as t  meet ing  i t  was,  Mr  

L inne l l  rece ived an inv i ta t ion  to  ass i s t  the  Aud i t  and R isk  

Commi t tee  and the  new bu i ld  and programme o f  Dr  Pat  

Na idoo.   So,  the  Board  d id ,  even inv i te  h im a f te r  the  11 t h  o f  

March.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r,  I  can ’ t  comment  on  tha t  I ’m  not  

aware  o f  any o f  those meet ings,  f i rs t  I ’m  coming to  be  20 

aware  o f  a l l  o f  th is  i s  on  the  19 t h  where  he  admi ts  to  me,  

on  the  19 t h ,  he  d idn ’ t  fo l low Procurement ,  he  admi ts  tha t  

he  d idn ’ t  engage  N ick  L inne l l  w i thout  p roper ly  in t roduc ing  

h im to  us ,  he  to ld  us  in  tha t  meet ing ,  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  th is  

man was g iven by  the  Pres ident ,  we d idn ’ t  know we fe l t  i t  
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was imposed on us ,  I  th ink  peop le  were  qu i te  upset  and he 

a lso  admi t ted  to  engage in  the  se rv ices  o f  Mr  N ick  L inne l l  

w i thout  the  Board  approva l ,  so  i t ’s  there ,  he  admi t ted  to  i t  

bu t  I  don ’ t  know those meet ing  be fore ,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  th ink  we ’ve  run  ou t  o f  t ime fo r  

today,  bu t  I  th ink  i t ’s  go ing  to  be  impor tan t  fo r  Mr  

Pamensky to  come back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed,  can we ar range i t  mutua l l y?  

MR PAMENSKY:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  because there  are  mat te rs  tha t ,  I  10 

th ink ,  he  fee ls  s t rong ly  about ,  in  terms o f  d i f fe ren t  vers ions  

tha t  need to  be  canvassed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  do ,  Mr  

Pamensky,  in  the  meant ime a l so ,  i s  to  look  a t  what  I  pu t  to  

some o f  the  Board  members  inc lud ing  Ms Na idoo yesterday 

when I  was say ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  was hop ing  to  do  tha t  today,  Cha i r,  I ’ ve  

go t  i t  a l l  wr i t ten  down,  I ’ ve  go t  a  po in t  fo r  you on a l l  o f  

i t…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    [Laughter ]  you ’ re  ready  

MR PAMENSKY:    I ’m  ready,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  i f  –  be fore  you come 

back,  i f  you  cou ld  pu t  what  you wanted to  pu t  to  say in  

re la t ion  to  tha t  in  a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t ,  an  a f f idav i t  
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tha t  wou ld  be  he lp fu l  bu t  when you come back i t  doesn ’ t  

mean I  won ’ t  g ive  you a  chance to  say i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r  i f  I  may,  Cha i r,  I  hear  your  request  

bu t  i f  you  look a t  my a f f idav i t ,  I  th ink  i t  covers  i t .   I  th ink  

i t ’s  fo r  me to  speak to  you,  each leve l ,  to  say  l i s ten  Cha i r,  I  

cou ld  no t  reca l l  why,  I ’m  not  invo l ved here ,  I ’m  not  invo lved 

here ,  I ’d  love  to  g ive  you tha t  oppor tun i ty…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  i f  i t ’s  covered in  the  a f f idav i t ,  you  

don ’ t  have to  do  another  a f f idav i t ,  then when you come 

back you can –  we dea l  w i th  i t .   What  I  d idn ’ t  ment ion  to  10 

Ms Na idoo,  I  fo rgo t  to  ment ion  is ,  a lso  how Mr  Tsots i  was  

k icked out ,  I  say  k icked out ,  bu t  I  know tha t  in  the  end he 

res igned but  I  th ink  i t ’s  qu i te  c lea r  tha t  he  res igned 

because the  Board  d idn ’ t  want  h im anymore .   Look ing  a t  

the  charges you may or  may not  have heard  the  quest ions 

tha t  we have put  to  o ther  Board  members  about  the  

charges.   I  can  say to  you tha t ,  I  have d i f f i cu l t y  w i th ,  I  

th ink  a lmost  a l l  the  …[ in tervenes] .  

MR PAMENSKY:    Yes,  Cha i r,  the  prob lem I  have w i th  i t ,  I  

can ’ t  answer  you i t  was le f t  to  PMG and the  lawyers  20 

dra f ted  i t ,  so  I  can ’ t  answer  you on tha t  quest ion ,  

un for tunate ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t ’s  f ine  bu t  when you dea l  

w i th  the  quest ion  tha t  I  pu t  to  –  the  p ic tu re  tha t  I  pu t  to  Ms 

Na idoo,  a l l  I ’m  say ing  is  tha t  I  d idn ’ t  fac tor  in  how Mr  
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Tso ts i  was k i cked out ,  i t ’s  par t  o f  tha t  p ic tu re .   You might  

say,  on  tha t  pa r t  I  have no comment  bu t  on  the  o ther  pa r ts  

o f  the  p ic tu re  I ’m  ab le  to  comment ,  th is  i s  my comment ,  

and you ’ l l  do  tha t  when you come back when you come 

back.  

MR PAMENSKY:    Cha i r  I  jus t  want  to  say two  th ings 

qu ick l y  be fo re  you leave,  number  one,  yes  what  you were  

say ing  was,  the  enab ler  to  come in to  th is  bus iness to  a l low  

these peop le  to  come in  and then the  t ransact ions so  tha t ’s  

what  you were  ask ing  fo r,  I  can  do  tha t .  Number  two,  I  jus t  10 

want  to  thank you fo r  the  oppor tun i ty,  Cha i r,  I ’ ve  wa i ted  

f i ve  years  to  exp la in  these emai ls  I  have been lambasted,  

I ’ ve  been k icked  out  o f  the  Jew ish  communi ty  le t  them 

hear,  on  these emai ls  peop le  th ink  I  was invo l ved  in  th is  

t ransact ion ,  I ’ ve  never  been invo lved in  th is  t ransact ion .   

So,  a t  leas t  I  had my chance to  come fo rward  and te l l  i t  a l l  

today,  and I  th ink  i t ’s  in  tha t  supp lementary  tha t  you ’ve  

go t .   So,  fo r  me,  i t ’s  a  b ig ,  b ig  thank you f rom my s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t ’s  f ine  bu t  the  rea l  po in t  tha t  I  

was ta lk ing  about ,  cer ta in ly  you w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  issue o f  20 

the  t ransact ion  bu t  what  I  was rea l l y  ta lk ing  about  in  te rms  

o f  the  p ic tu re  I  pu t  to  Ms Na idoo is  the  one o f  say ing ,  i t  

looks  l i ke  there  may have been peop le  f rom outs ide  o f  

Eskom who were  in f luenc ing  what  the  Board  was do ing  and  

peop le  w i th in  the  Board  were  do ing ,  so  i f  you  can l i s ten  
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aga in  to  tha t  par t  o f  the  quest ion  and  then to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  you a re  ab le  to  when you come back you can dea l  w i th  

i t .  

MR PAMENSKY:    I  look  fo rward  to  dea l  w i th  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV BLOU:    Cha i r  we w i l l  a lso  ass i s t  in  tha t  regard ,  I  

haven ’ t  been fo l low ing th is  l i ke  i t  i s  a  runn ing  a  br ie f ,  I  

th ink  Mr  Pamensky wou ld  be  compla in ing  about  inso l vency  

i f  I  was on a  da i l y  bas is  fo l low ing  a l l  the  ev idence  in  the  

Commiss ion ,  bu t  we w i l l  ge t  the  record  o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  10 

you have re fer red  to  and we w i l l  e i ther,  i f  i t  hasn ’ t  been 

covered by  the  a f f idav i t  a t  a l l  we w i l l  cons ider  w i th  Mr  

Pamensky ’s  consent  dea l ing  w i th  i t  on  a f f idav i t ,  in  a  shor t  

supp lementary,  o r  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  o ra l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV BLOU:   We wi l l  ass i s t  in  tha t  regard .   Cha i r  m ight  I  

jus t  say  one o ther  th ing  be fore  the  i r repress ib le  Mr  

Pamensky says  someth ing  e l se ,  i s  in  re la t ion  to  the 

Mel rose Arch  quest ion  I  th ink  we w i l l  engage w i th  the  

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga tors  d i rec t l y  and Mr  Se leka,  I  do  no t  20 

be l ieve  i t  i s  the  sor t  o f  mat te r  tha t  has to  be  on  the  reco rd  

g iven the  type o f  invest iga t ion  tha t  you w ish  to  c la r i f y  in  

tha t  regard ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  best  s imp ly  supp l ied .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh you sa id  in  re la t ion  to?  

ADV BLOU:   In to  the  Mel rose Arch  address.   I  don ’ t  th ink  
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i t  shou ld  be  necessar i l y  on  the  record ,  I  th ink  i t  shou ld  be  

g iven to  the  –  or  you can put  i t  on  the  record  i f  you  w ish ,  

bu t  we w i l l  g ive  those deta i l s  d i rec t l y  to  the  invest iga tors  

because i t  m igh t  be  tha t  they want  to  use i t  fo r  purposes 

before  i t  becomes pub l i c .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no  I  th ink  you are  r igh t  ja ,  ja .    

You w i l l  dea l  w i t h  Mr  Se leka and then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom 

there .    No,  no ,  you are  r igh t .  

ADV BLOU:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    Okay we are  go ing  to  10 

ad journ  fo r  now,  we have to  ad journ  because I  have got  

another  commi tment  so  we won ’ t  be  ab le  to  s i t  fo r  the  res t  

o f  the  day,  I  apo log ise  to  a l l  concerned  fo r  any  

inconven ience.    Tomorrow a lso  we won ’ t  be  ab le  to  s ta r t  a t  

ten  as  normal ,  bu t  as  soon as  my commi tment  i s  over  I  w i l l  

rush  back to  the  hear ing  and we shou ld  be  ab le  to  s ta r t  a t  

about  one o ’c lock  so  those who w i l l  be  invo lved I  hope they  

are  l i s ten ing  wh i le  no t  here ,  they shou ld  have the i r  lunch  

between twe lve  and one.  

ADV BLOU:   Might  I  jus t  conf i rm  tha t  we are  no t  on  the  20 

agenda fo r  tomor row? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  no .  

ADV BLOU:   Thank you fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we w i l l  p robab ly  s ta r t  a t  a round one  

o ’c lock  and I  w i l l  s i t  up  to  about  four  o r  f i ve  or  
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thereabouts .    

 Okay,  thank you very  much to  eve rybody,  we 

ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 12 FEBRUARY 2021  
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